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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD -~ 10 DECEMBER 2012

REPORT ON: ENGINEERING WORKS

REPORT BY: ENGINEER TO THE BOARD

REPORT NO: TRB 32-2012

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise the Joint Board on the current situation regarding Engineering works on
the bridge.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 It is recommended that the Joint Board note the position on current progress.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

4 SUSTAINABILITY POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no Sustainability Policy implications of relevance to this report.
EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no equal opportunities implications of relevance fo this report.

6 IMPLICATIONS TO BRIDGE USERS

6.1 There are no major implications for bridge users arising from this report.

7 BACKGROUND

71 Pier Collision Protection Works

Reference is made to Article | of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 1
August 2011 where the Joint Board agreed the terms of the Contractor's
Statement including the developed tender of £15,114,359.28 from VolkerStevin
Ltd and noted an estimated overall expenditure requirement of £19.1 million for
the pier collision protection works project.

As previously advised, the contract period is for 18 months from August 2011 to
February 2013, however the contractor programmed the works to complete by
December 2012.

VolkerStevin set up offices and a working compound in Dundee Port in early
January 2012 where they carried out substantial reinforced concrete works in the
yard to form the twelve large precast fendering units. The precasting works were
completed in June 2012 and steel reinforcement cages were prefabricated in the
yard for later transfer out to site to reinforce the precast concrete fendering units.
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Piling works started on site on 5 April 2012 and were completed ahead of
programmed time on 13 May 2012.

Scour protection works to the river bed around the piles started on 1 June 2012
and were completed by mid July 2012.

Specialist 'lift and shift' craneage and transportation operations for the movement
of the precast concrete fendering units from the Port compound to the harbourside
started in July 2012 and specialist floating plant and craneage for the installation
of the precast concrete fendering units out on site was secured. These operations
went very well and the works to install the units out on site were completed ahead
of schedule on 27 July 2012 with a subsequent saving in cosis.

The installation of steel reinforcement and concreting to tie together and
strengthen the precast concrete fendering units followed and this work was
completed as programmed by 15 November 2012. Approximately 7000 tonnes of
concrete was placed over a 10 week period.

Works are now substantially complete with the bulk of the plant and equipment
demobilised and the working compound decommissioned. The ancillary works of
handrails, walkways, navigation lighting etc are currently being installed with a
planned completion date of 7 December 2012. This is 2 weeks ahead of the
originally planned completion date.

The following provides a summary of progress with the key elements of work to 30
November 2012:

Manufacture of precast concrete fendering units - 100%
Riling - 100%
Scour protection - 100%
Installation of precast concrete fendering units - 100%

Steel reinforcement to precast concrete fendering units - 100%
Concrete infill to precast fendering units 100%
Ancillary works 66%

As previously advised, VolkerStevin signed up to a partnership with the Tay Road
Bridge Joint Board, Dundee City Council, Fife Council, Angus Council and the
Discover Opportunities Employability Partnership. This secures community benefit
in the form of employment and training opportunities for local people.

VolkerStevin recruited 3 local office staff and 5 local labourers and registered 12
vacancies with Discover Opportunities, 5 vacancies were filled through Discover
Opportunities

ValkerStevin recruited 4 local people to fill management/engineering roles for the
project including a local civil engineering graduate who has since been taken on
permanently. VolkerStevin are providing appropriate training to these staff.

The precast concrete works were sub-contracted to a local company which
employed 27 local operatives at its peak. The same company also carried the
steel fixing and concreting works out on site. Scaffolding was provided locally by 4
local operatives.

Scour protection mattresses were manufactured by SPS in Dundee Port whilst
Briggs Marine, Fife provided marine access and carrying vessels.
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The 7000 tonnes of concrete was supplied locally along with miscellaneous other
materials and plant from local merchants and tool hire companies.

In total, 264 jobs were created on the project and 191 of these jobs were filled by
local labour (72%).

The site is registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme, showing
VolkerStevin's commitment to operating with consideration for the environment
and the local community it is working within.

The costs on the contract are controiled and monitored on a regular basis. The
following summarises the current financial position with the contract:

Projected Spend to

end of Contract Approved Budget

Contractor Professional Services £188,456* £100,000

Site Investigation £753,037 £900,000

Contract Works £15,236,382 £15,114,359
Share allowance £250,000 £755,718

Contingencies {Additional Works) £163,618 £1,020,923

DCC City Engineers Division £155,568 £164,000

Professional Fees

Professional Consultants Fees - £439,151F £380,000

Design

Category 3 Design Check £66,500 £75,000

Professional Consultants Fees - £431,212 £490,000

Contract

Other Allowances £111,907 £100,000

Total £17,795,831 £19,100,000

Saving | £1,304,169

* Note that the contractor professional services fees and the professional consultants design fees are over the
original budget for that heading, however this was o cover a number of value engineering exercises which has
resulted in shared savings of over £500,000.

Overall, this project has been completed ahead of time, below budget and fo high
quality and safety standards. Volker Stevin and the Client and Design Team have
worked well together on what was a high risk project in a marine environment.
Local employment opportunities have been successfuily achieved.
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7.2

7.3

Column and Pier Survey

Reference is made to Article 1V of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board meeting of 10
September 2012 where the Joint Board authorised the appointment of Pendrich
Height Services to carry out a specialist abseil inspection of the Tay Road Bridge
columns and piers and to submit reports and record photographs and drawings.
The tender price for the inspection works is £69,950.18.

The contractor started on site on 30 October 2012 and the inspection work is
progressing well. Site works are programmed to be completed by 11 February
2013 with reporting completed by & March 2013.

The outcome of this Principal Inspection of the bridge columns and piers will be
reported to the March 2013 Board meeting.

Dundee Waterfront - Removal and Reconstruction of Bridge Ramps

Dundee City Council awarded the contract for this stage of the works to Sir Robert
MacAlpine Ltd at a cost of £8.2 million. This stage involves the phased removal
and replacement of the remainder of the approach ramps to the Tay Road Bridge
including the construction of temporary diversion routes necessary for the removal
of the ramps. The works also include the construction of elements of roads,
drainage and services within the Waterfront Development. Works associated with
the Dundee Waterfront started on site on 30 August 2011

The works to the remainder of the bridge ramps are to be carried out in a number
of phases over a two year period with completion by December 2013. Works
started in January 2012 on the widening of the southbound on ramp at Customs
House to accommodate two wide lanes of traffic. These works have now been
completed and were opened in late April 2012. During the waterfront works, this
widened ramp is now the only route onto the southbound carriageway of the Tay
Road Bridge for traffic.

The traffic management arrangements for access to and egress from the bridge
currently in place are those generally in place until the new ramps open in
December 2013. These new long term temporary arrangements continue fo work
well.

The new traffic arrangements enabled the on ramp at Tayside House to be closed
and demolition of the remaining bridge ramps started in early June 2012 and was
completed ahead of programme by the end of July 2012. The demolition material
from the ramps has been crushed and graded for recycling as fill material in the
embankment of the new realigned bridge approach ramps. The new on ramps wil
be of reinforced earth construction with a granite clad facing to maich the new
westbound off ramp.

The new realigned ramp is currently under construction, re-using the crushed
material within the vibro stone column piles and ground improvements structure
and in the embankment itself. Construction of the new South Marketgait Bridge at
South Victoria Dock Road is well underway with the new piers and abutment
completed and steel beams for the new bridge deck erected on the western side
tying in with the former toll plaza.

The works are progressing well and are currently ahead of schedule.
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Further regular reports will be brought to the Board detailing progress with this
important project.

The Bridge Manager will continue to provide the Board with a monthly update on
progress.

8 CONSULTATIONS

8.1 The Clerk, Treasurer and Bridge Manager have been consulted in the preparation
of this report.

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS

9.1 None.

Fergus Wilson
Engineer to the Board

FW/EH

Dundee City Council
Dundee House

Dundee

28 November 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 10 DECENMBER 2012
REPORT ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES
THE BRIDGE MANAGER

TRB 30- 2012

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To appraise the Joint Board of the number and nature of operational restrictions and closures
applied between 1 August and 31 October 2012,

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board are asked to note the contents of this Report as at 31 October 2012.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None.

5. COMMENTARY ON OPERATIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND CLOSURES

5.1 Restrictions are applied to the traffic on the bridge for a number of reasons including recovering
debris, breakdowns, high winds and other operational requirements.

A summary of the restrictions applied between August and October 2012 are given below:-

i)

Single carriageway closures

Reason Total No of Average
Duration | Cccasions | Duration
(Minutes) (Minutes)
Operational 664 252 2.6
Breakdown 170 18 9
Misc. nil nil nil
Incidents




i)

i)

Traffic Restrictions

Reason Single Total No of Average
Carriageway | Duration | Occasions | Duration
/Both (Minutes) {Minutes)

High Winds

No Double Both 5370 14 383

Deck

Buses

Allowed

Cars Only Both 794 2 397

Full Both 0 0 0

Closure

Roadworks

TRBJB Single 3075 17 181

External Single 0 0 0

Contractor

On the 24" /25" September winds in excess of 80mph were recorded and restrictions put in
place. This was the first time high wind restrictions were applied since the upgraded web site
was in place.

On average the daily number of visits to the web site since June is of the order of 170. Over
the 24 hour period of 24" /25" September this reached 7900. In addition to this of the order
of 9000 RSS Feeds were sent indicating that the new web site was being well used for
dissemination of information relating to high wind restrictions.

In addition to the evidence on the web site, Bridge Control staff received a lower volume of
telephone enquiries relating fo the restrictions.

Closures on both carriageways

Reason Full Total No of Average

' Closure | Duration | Occasions | Duration
{Minutes) (Minutes)

Operational Yes 325 2 163

(Night

Closures)

Police Yes 213 11 19

Incidents




iii) Availability of Bridge

Based on the above figures the various levels of availability of the bridge fo users is as

follows:-
Full availability (No restrictions) 92%
Partial Availability (Some restrictions) 7.6%
No Availability (Fult Closure) 0.4%
Availability of Bridge to Users
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Figure 1 — Comparison of Availability of Bridge to Users

As can be seen from Figure 1 the bridge was either fully available or available with restrictions for

99.6% of the time.

The level of total closures for the period was relatively minor at 0.4%.

6 CONSULTATIONS

6.1 The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the preparation of this

report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 None

IAIN MACKINNCN
BRIDGE MANAGER
14 November 2012







REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 10 DECEMBER 2012
REPORT ON: REVENUE MONITORING - 7 MONTHS TO 31 OCTOBER 2012
REPORT BY: THE TREASURER

REPORT NO:  TRB 25-2012 ITEM No, .&

..........................

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to appraise the Joint Board of the current monitoring position of
it's 2012/2013 Revenue Budget.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Joint Board note the content of this Revenue Monitoring Report
as at 31 October 2012.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The current outturn for the financial year 2012/2013 shows a £10,000 overspend based on
the financial ledger information up to 31 October 2012.

3.2 Following the removal of toils the Board's Revenue Expenditure is now financed by an
annual Revenue Grant from Scottish Government.

Due to the fact that the Board's Revenue Expenditure is fully funded by grant any
underspend achieved will result in unspent grant being carried forward, with the agreement
of the Scottish Government, to fund future years' Revenue Expenditure. The underspend
achieved in 2011/2012 resulted in a Revenue Grant Balance carried forward into 2012/2013
of £160,000. This balance will be used to fund any overspend in the current financial year
before any contributions are made from the General Fund Reserve Balance.

33 An overspend of £10,000 is projected in relation to Administration Supplies & Services
Costs. This is due to an increase in the Engineering Combined Insurance Premium as there
is now a requirement for more regular inspections due to recent modifications to the Runway
Beam and Gantries (see 2012/13 Insurance Programme TRB 10-2012).

3.4  The projected overspend position, if it materialised, would be funded by applying £10,000
from previous year's Revenue Grant carried forward (as described in paragraph 3.2). This
application of previous years' Revenue Grant carried forward will result in a projected
balance of £150,000 at 31 March 2013.

3.5 The application of Revenue Grant carried forward to fund the projected overspend, if it
materialised, would result in a projected General Fund Reserve of £1,160,591 at 31 March
2013. This level of retained reserves is subject to negotiation with the Scottish Government.
4 REASONS FOR REVENUE EXPENDITURE VARIANCES

The main reasons for the projected Revenue variances can be summarised as follows:

£000
A projected overspend relating to Administration Supplies & Service Costs 10
NET OVERSPEND/(UNDERSPEND) _10

TRB 25-2012 - REVMON-101212



5 RISK ASSESSMENT

In preparing the Board's Annual Revenue Budget, the Treasurer considered the key
strategic, operational and financial risks faced by the Board over this period. In order to
alleviate the impact these risks may have should they occur, a number of general risk
mitigating factors are utilised by the Board. These include:

- a system of perpetual detailed monthly budget monitoring with latest positions reported to

quarterly Board meetings.
- the level of General Fund Reserve balances available to meet any unforeseen

expenditure.
- the level of other cash backed reserves available to meet any unforeseen expenditure.
- the possibility of identifying further budget savings and efficiencies during the year if

required.
- the possibility of identifying new income streams during the year.

6 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None

7 "CONSULTATIONS
The Clerk, Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the

preparation of this report.

8 BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

MARJORY STEWART
TREASURER 13 NOVEMBER 2012

TRB 25-2012 - REVMON-101212



APPENDIX A
TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

REVENUE MONITORING AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2012

Expenditure

Revenue to Final Variance :
Budget 31 Oct Projection from Paragraph
2012/13 2012 2012/13 Budget Reference
£ £ £ £
EXPENDITURE
Administration ’
Staff Costs 184,327 107,718 184,327 -
Property Costs 22,628 5,153 22,628 -
Supplies and Services 164,064 141,241 174,064 10,000 (3.3)
Transport Costs . 1,494 74 1,494 -
Third Party Payments 76,191 - 76,191 -
448,704 254,186 458,704 10,000
Operations
Staff 491,405 269,251 491,405 -
Supplies & Services 7,827 1,328 7,827 -
499,232 270,579 499,232 -
Plant and Equipment
Property 37,563 11,979 37,563 -
Supplies & Services 108,823 49,124 108,823 -
Transport 35,743 24,732 35,743 -
Third Party Payments 11,488 4,137 11,488 -
193,617 89,972 193,617 -
Bridge Maintenance
Staff 448,390 236,643 448,390 -
Property 11,750 3,523 11,750 -
Supplies & Services 52,847 9,186 52,847 -
Transport 557 32 557 -
Third Party Payments 66,116 7,962 66,116 -
579,660 257,346 579,660 -
GROSS EXPENDITURE 1,721,213 872,083 1,731,213 10,000
INCOME
Scottish Government Revenue Grant 1,700,000 991,667 1,700,000 -
Interest on Revenue Balances 11,000 - 11,000 -
Kiosk Rent 10,213 5,106 10,213 -
Miscellaneous - 225 - -
GROSS INCOME \ 1,721,213 996,998 1,721,213 -
TOTAL NET DEFICIT/{SURPLUS) - (124,915) 10,000 10,000

TRB 28-2012 - REVMON-101212






REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 10 DECEMBER 2012
REPORT ON: CAPITAL MONITORING - 7 MONTHS TO 31 OCTOBER 2012

REPORT BY: THE TREASURER

REPORT NO:  TRB 26-2012 iTEMNo., S

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to appraise the Joint Board of the current monitoring position of
it's 2012/2013 Capital Budget.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Joint Board note the content of this Capital Monitoring Report as
at 31 October 2012,

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Joint Board's 2012/2013 Capital Expenditure Programme of £8,5656,000 was approved
by the Board on 12 December 2011 (Report TRB 33-2011). From 1 April 2008 the Board's
Capital Expenditure projects are being financed through Scottish Government Capital Grant.

Since the Capital Budget for 2012/2013 was approved, there has been slippage of
£4 511,000 from the 2011/2012 capital expenditure programme into 2012/2013. This has
been offset by budget reductions in 2012/2013 of £2,052,000 and £310,000 slippage into the
2013/2014 Capital Programme. The capital outturn for the financial year 2012/2013 (as
detailed in Appendix A) is projected to be £10,705,000 based on the financial ledger
information up to 31 October 2012 and this will be funded from 2012/2013 Capital Grant of
£6,300,000 and Capital Grant carried forward from previous years of £4,405,000. This
results in a projected Capital Grant carried forward intc 2013/2014 of £815,000.

4 REASONS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE INCREASE

The main reasons for the increase of £2,149,000 can be summarised as follows:

£000
Slippage from 2011/2012:
Inspections to Columns & Piers 170
Gantry Miscellaneous 11
Pier Collision Protection to Navigation Spans 4,274
Advance Warning Signs 56
Budget Adjustments:
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works (100)
Carriageway Resurfacing 50
Paintwork fo Box Girders (50)
Pier Colliision Protection to Navigation Spans (1,852)
Slippage into 2013/2014:
Inspection to Columns & Piers (150)
North Approach Viaduct Remedial Works (160)
Total Budget Adjustments 2,149

TRB 26-2012-Cap Mon-101212



5 RISK ASSESSMENT

5.1 There are a number of risks which may have an impact on the Capital expenditure
programme for 2012/2013. The main areas of risk are set out below, together with the
mechanisms in place to help mitigate these risks.

52 Construction cost inflation levels remain relatively low, however they can on occasion be
relatively high in comparison to general inflation. Therefore delays in scheduling and letting
contracts may lead to increases in projected costs. Every effort will be made o ensure
delays are avoided wherever possible and any increase in costs minimised.

5.3  Slippage in the Capital programme leads to the need to reschedule projects in the current
year and possibly future years, therefore creating problems in delivering the programme on
time. For this reason the programme is carefully monitored and any potential slippage is
identified as soon as possible and any corrective action taken.

54 Capital projects can be subject to unforeseen price increases. The nature of construction
projects is such that additional unexpected costs can occur. Contingencies are built into the
budget for each capital project and these are closely monitored throughout the project.

55  There is risk associated with projects that are not yet legally committed as the works are not
yet tendered for, and there is potential for costs to be greater than the allowance contained
within the Capital Plan. As the majority of spend on these projects is in future years, the risk
in the current year is not significant. Future years' Capital programme will be adjusted to
reflect updated cost estimates.

5.6 The Capital Monitoring report and the Engineer's report provide information on individual
projects contained within the Capital Budget and the impact of expenditure movements on
the future financial years.

6 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None

7 CONCLUSION
The Board's 2012/2013 capital programme is showing a projected capital spend of
£10,705,000 which will be funded from Scottish Government grant.

The 2012/2013 capital expenditure programme will continue to be monitored on a regular
basis throughout the remainder of the current financial year.

8 CONSULTATIONS
The Clerk, Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the
preparation of this report.

9 BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

MARJORY STEWART 29 NOVENMBER 2012

TREASURER

TRB 26-2012-Cap Mon-101212
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 10 DECEMBER 2012

REPORT ON: REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

JOINT REPORT BY: TREASURER AND BRIDGE MANAGER

REPORT NO: TRB 27-2012 T Z

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To appraise members of the Joint Board on the proposed Revenue Budget of the Tay Road
Bridge for the financial year 2013/14.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Board is asked to approve the 2013/14 Revenue Budget.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Board's 2013/14 Revenue Budget shows a balanced budget which is arrived at after
assuming receipt of a Resource Grant from the Scottish Government of £1,700,000. The
General Fund Reserve balance is projected to be £1,160,591 as at 31 March 2014.

REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

The budget for staff costs includes a provision for estimated pay award of 1% for 2013/14.
The budget also takes into consideration the effects of staff furnover whereby leavers who
were employed at the top of their salary scales have been replaced by new starters who are
employed at the lowest increment on the salary scale. It also takes into account the
introducticn of the Living Wage.

The triennial actuarial valuation of the Tayside Superannuation Fund was carried out in 2011
and took effect from 1 April 2012, The outcome of that valuation will have to be reflected in
employer's contribution rates in the Revenue Budget for 2012/13 and future years. Currently
the employer's contribution rate is 18.5% and no increase is anticipated in 2013/14.

A general inflationary increase of 0% on 2012/13 non-staff costs was included in the
2013/14 Revenue Budget with specific allowances made for anticipated increases or
decreases in individual budgets.

The 2013/14 Revenue Budget has been prepared in accordance with previous years'
budgets. A copy of the detailed Revenue Budget 2013/14 is enclosed at Appendix A.

The Scottish Government's Comprehensive Spending Review confirmed that the funding
requirement for the 2013/14 Revenue Budget would be met. However the Scottish
Government's CSR is for 2012/13 to 2014/15 only and there is no guarantee that this level of
funding will be maintained in future years.

TRB 27-2012-RB13-14-101212



5.1

. 58.2

53

RESERVES AND BALANCES

Section 12(1) of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 states that "It is the duty of a
local authority to observe proper accounting practices”. CIPFA have previously issued
guidance on Local Authority Reserves and Balances (including an update in November
2008), and this guidance is considered to constitute proper accounting practice. The key
requirements of the guidance, as they affect the Board, are two-fold:

i the setting out of a clear protocol covering the purpose, utilisation, management,
control and review of reserves and balances.

fi the inclusion in the annual budget report of a statement on reserves and balances
detailing the proposed strategy over the budget period, after taking into account the
strategic, operational and financial risks facing the Board.

The. Board agreed report TRB 25-2009 Guidance on Reserves and Balances on 14

December 2009. This report included a protocol for the operation of the Board's Reserves
and Balances, thereby addressing the first key requirement detailed in-paragraph 5.1 above.
The proposed protocol includes the following element which in itself addresses the second
key requirement detailed in paragraph 5.1 above:

In the Annual Budget report that is considered by the Board, the Treasurer shall include the
following:

i a note highlighting the estimated opening and closing General Fund balances for the
financial year ahead.

ii a note advising as to the adequacy of the General Fund balances over the budget
period(s) under consideration, after taking into account the strategic, operational and
financial risks facing the Board.

iii a note reporting on the annual review of earmarked Reserves.

In accordance with the element of the proposed protocol that relates to the annual budget
report, the following statements are made by the Treasurer:

i The Board's Audited Statement of Accounts 2011/2012 showed a General Fund
Reserve Balance of £1,160,591 at 31 March 2012.
The Board’s Revenue Expenditure is fully funded by grant and any underspend
achieved will result in unspent grant being carried forward, with the agreement of the
Scottish Government, to fund future years’ Revenue Expenditure. The underspend
achieved in 2011/2012 resuited in a Revenue Grant Balance carried forward into
2012/2013 of £160,000. This balance will be used to fund any overspend in the
current financial year before any contributions are made from the General Fund
Reserve Balance.
The 2012/13 Revenue monitoring currently projects an overspend of £10,000.
Taking the above factors into account, the level of Revenue Grant Balance carried
forward at 31 March 2013 is projected to be £150,000 and the level of uncommitted
General Fund Reserve Balances at 31 March 2013 is estimated at £1,160,591.
There are no further known expenditure commitments or additional income that
would materially affect this projected balances figure.

ii after taking into account the strategic, operational and financial risks facing the Board
it is considered that the minimum level of uncommitted balances that the Board
should maintain is £800,000.

TRB 27-2012-RB13-14-101212



iii the Board's earmarked reserve (i.e. the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve) has been
reviewed and is considered to be adequate for its intended purpose.

6 RISK ASSESSMENT
6.1 In preparing the Board's Annual Revenue Budget the Treasurer considered the key
strategic, operational and financial risks faced by the Board over this period.
6.2  The main risk factors considered were:
- the possibility of new cost pressures or responsibilities emerging during the course of the
financial year.
- anticipated changes in service provision.
- the certainty of significant income streams. :
- the inherent uncertainty surrounding matters such as interest rates and price inflation.
- the possibility of major items of unforeseen expenditure.
- the possibility of identifying further budget savings and efficiencies, if required.
- the adequacy of the Board's insurance arrangements.
6.3  In order to alleviate the impact these risks may have should they occur, a number of general
risk mitigating factors are utilised by the Board. These include:
- a system of perpetual detailed monthly budget monitoring with latest positions reported to
quarterly Board meetings.
- the level of General Fund balances available to meet any unforeseen expenditure.
- the level of other cash backed reserves available to meet any unforeseen expenditure.
- the possibility of identifying further budget savings and efficiencies during the year if
required.
- the possibility of identifying new income streams during the year.
7 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None
8 CONSULTATIONS
The Clerk, Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the
preparation of this report.
9 BACKGROUND PAPERS
None
MARJORY STEWART
TREASURER 22 NOVEMBER 2012

TRB 27-2012-RB13-14-101212



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

Administration

Staff

Property

Supplies & Services
Transport

Third Party Payments

Operations
Staff

Supplies & Services

Plant & Equipment
Property

Supplies & Services
Transport

Third Party Payments

Bridge Maintenance
Staff

Property

Supplies & Services
Transport

Third Party Payments

GROSS EXPENDITURE

Income

Scottish Government Resource Grant

Interest on Revenue Balances
Kiosk Rent
Miscellaneous

GROSS INCOME

TOTAL DEFICIT/(SURPLUS) MET FROM

GENERAL FUND BALANCES

TRB 27-2012-RB13-14-101212

201213 2012M3
Revenue Final
Budget Projection
£ £
184,327 184,327
22,628 22,628
164,064 174,064
1,494 1,494
76,191 16,191
448,704 458,704
491,405 491,405
7,827 7.827
499,232 499,232
37,583 37,563
108,823 108,823
35,743 35,743
11,488 11,488
193.617 193,617
448,390 448,390
11,750 11,750
52,847 52,847
557 557
66,116 66,116
579,660 579,660
1.7 1 1,731,213
1,700,000 1,700,000
11,000 11,000
10,213 10,213
1,721.213 1,721,213
— 10.000

APPENDEX A

201314
Revenue
Budget
£

183,823
19,200
173,220
1,100
79.250

456,593

486,624
7,500

494,124

36,650
123,350
39,800
17.650 .

217,550

442 896
12,800
51,850

560
44,750

552,946

1.721.213

1,700,000
11,000
10,213

1.721.213



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 16 DECEMBER 2012

REPORT ON: CAPITAL PLAN 2013/14 TO 2015/16

REPORT BY: TREASURER

REPORT NO:  TRB 28-2012 TEMNo., T

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to approve the Board’s Capital Plan for the period 2013/14 to
2015/186 inclusive.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board approve the Capital Plan as detailed in Appendix A of this
report subject to confirmation of grant funding by the Scottish Government.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Abolition of Bridge Tolls (Scotland) Act 2008 received Royal Assent on 24 January
2008. From 1 April 2008 the Board's annual capital expenditure programme has been
financed through a Scottish Government Capital Grant.

The revised capital programme and agreed capital grant funding which are highlighted in
Appendix A, show planned expenditure and income as follows:

Capital Grant

Budget Funding
Financial Year £000 £000
2013/14 740 500
2014/15 2,510 -
2015/16 2,250 -

The Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have prepared the draft 3 year Capital
Plan which is detailed in Appendix A of this report.

Appendix A also shows the agreed capital grant funding from the Scottish Government and
the respective funding deficits in each financial year which will need o be the subject of
further discussions with the Scottish Government.

RISK ASSESSMENT

There are a number of risks which may have an impact on the Capital Budget programme.
The main areas of risk are set out below, together with the mechanisms in place to help
mitigate these risks.

Construction cost inflation levels remain relatively low, however they can on occasion be
relatively high in comparison to general inflation. Therefore delays in scheduling and letting
contracts may lead to increases in projected costs. Every effort will be made fo ensure
delays are avoided wherever possible and any increase in costs minimised.

Slippage in the Capital programme leads to the need to reschedule projects in the current
year and possibly future years, therefore creating problems in delivering the programme on
time. For this reason the programme is carefully monitored and any potential slippage is
identified as soon as possible and any corrective action taken.

TRE 28-2012-CP-101212



4.4 Capital projects can be subject to unforeseen price increases. The nature of construction
projects is such that additional unexpected costs can occur. Contingencies are built into the
budget for each capital project and these are closely monitored throughout the project.

45  There is risk associated with projects that are not yet legally committed as the works are not
yet tendered for, and there is potential for costs to be greater than the allowance contained
within the Capital Plan. As the majority of spend on these projects is in future years, the risk
in the current year is not significant. Future years' Capital programme will be adjusted to
reflect updated cost estimates.

46 The Capital Monitoring report and the Engineer's report provide information on individual
projects contained within the Capital Budget and the impact of expenditure movements on
the future financial years.

5 POLICY IMPLICATIONS
None

6 CONSULTATIONS
The Clerk, Bridge Manager and the Engineer to the Board have been consulted in the
preparation of this report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

MARJORY STEWART

TREASURER 22 NOVEMBER 2012

TRB 28-2012-CP-101212



APPENDIX A

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

PROPOSED CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROGRAMME 2013/14 - 2015/16

Projected
Outturn
201213  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
£000 £000 £000  £000
Project Title
Safety Boat 10 - 10 -
New Vehicles - 30 - 30
North Approach Viaducts Remedial Works - 160 - -
Carriageway Resurfacing 75 75 1,500 1,500
Inspections fo Columns and Piers 120 150 - -
Paintwork to Box Girders : - 50 50 100
Pier Collision Protection to Navigation Spans 10,308 - 400. -
Gantry — Miscellaneous 36 25 25 25
CCTV/lce Detection/CP Monitoring Equipment 50 100 50 50
Miscellaneous Projects 50 50 50 100
Advanced Warning Signs 56 100 - -
Replacement of Expansion Joints - - 425 425
Scour Protection - - - 20
10.705 740 2.510 2.250
Funded by
Capital Grant 6,300 500 - -
Capital Grant carried forward from previous years 4,405 240 575 -
Capital Receipts - - - -
10,70 740 575 _-
2 1,935 2.250

Additional Capital Grant Required

TRE 28-2012-CP-101212
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MEMBERS AND OFFICIALS

The Board comprises 12 elected members who are appointed by the three constliuent local authorities fo serve on
the Board. Dundee City Councll nominates 8 members, Angus Council have 1 member and Fife Councli nominate
the remaining 5 members. Foliowing the previous Scottish Local Govemment Elections that were held in May 2007
it was agreed by the Board that Dundee City Council would continue to act as lead authority o the Board, and
consequently, the Councli ars required o appolnt officers to serve as officials of the Board. At the end of financial
year 2011/2012, the Members and Officials of the Board wera:

.2 Councillor David Bowes
i Counciflor Will Dawson
: Counclfior Ken Lynn
Councilior Mchammed Asif
 Councilior Tom Ferguson (Vice Chair)
1 Ballle Rod Wallace

.: Counciller Andrew Arbuckle (Chalr}
" Counciller Jim Young

Counclller David MacDairmid
Counciller Margaret Taylor

s Counclilor Ross Vetiralno

£

Contact details:

Brldge Manager Englineer Clerk Treasurer

Bridge Office ofo Dundae Clly Gounch c/a Dundea Clty Cauncit c/o Cundea City Councll

Marina Parade City Davelapment Dept Corporate Services Dept Corporate Services Dept

Dundee £Q Norh Lindsay Strest 21 CRy Stuare 50 North Lindsay Strest

01382-221881 Dundee Dundea Dundes

lain.mackinnon@tayroad 01382-433711 01382-434202 01362-433555

bridga,co.uk fargus.witson@} pakicla.merkguham(@ matjory stewarl@
dundeecity.gov.uk dundescily.gov.uk dusideecity.gov.uk



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

Bridge Manager's Report

Organlsational Ghanges

In March 2012, the Clerk te the Board, Patricia Mcliguham retired after hoiding the position for 18 years.
Rager Mennie, Head of Democratic and Legal Services, Dundee City Council, was appointed Cierk to the
Board as of 1 Aprit 2012,

The cumrent Chalr, Andrew Arbuckle, is not seeking re-election to Fife Council and will be standing down
as Chair after the Local Government Elections on 3 May 2012.

The Bridge Manager would like to extend his thanks to the outgoing Chair and Clerk o the Board for thelr
support and assistance.

Management Arrangement with Scottish Government

During this period, the main point of contact with the Scottish Government continued to be the Trunk Road
and Bus Operations Team of Transport Scotiand. Meetings have been held on a regular basis between
Board Officers and offieers from the Trunk Road and Bus Operations Team to discuss financial matters
ete.,

Contracts

Pier Coliision Protection Werks
The Bridge Manager, In conjunction with the Engineer to the Board, has been extensively invoived in the

design and construction process for the Pier Coilision Protection Works contract, which was awarded to
Volker Stevin in January 2011, In addition to the design and construction process, the Bridge Manager
has worked with the Harbour Master and Volker Stavin regarding navigation issues associated with the
works.

Variable Message Signs
Ongoing problems with the provision of an electrical supply have resulted in further delay fo the

caompletion of this project. The final work to provide power to the site was completed in March 2012 and it
is anticipated that the final sign installation wili now be completed in the May 2012.

Maintenance Gantries
The Board's two self propelied maintenance gantries were subjected to a full Principle inspection and

refurbishment programme. The refurbishment works, which included the remaval and replacement of the
slew ring mechanlsms, were carried out in-house and will add several years to the lifespan of the ganlries
before full replacement will be required.

Dundee Cantral Watarfront Development

Contract 2 to reconstruct the Perth off ramp was completed in November 2011 and during the works there
were only nominal effects on bridge users. Contract 3 for the demolition and reconstruction of the
remaining ramps was awarded to Sir Robert McAlpine and the Bridge Manager was involved in the
Contractor interview and assessment element of the procurement process. To date the bulk of the works
have had little or no effect on bridge users.

Traffic

Due to the ongoing work to recanfigure the bridge approach spans as part of the Dundee City Waterfront
Development there have been prolonged periods where the traffic counters have been unavailable for use
therefore there has been insufficient data collected to provide meaningful comparison of traffic flows. On
completion of the reconfiguration of the bridge approaches the {raffic counters will be reinstated and full
traffic figures coliected for future reports.



One or both lanes on the bridge were closed on a number of occasions over the past twelve menths. The
{able below summarises the reasens and number of occurrences:-

Wind Wind Wind Minor Breakdowns | Works Debris
speed speed > | speed > | accldents related colteetion
» 80mph | 60mph 45mph closures etc
Ciosed fo| CarsOnly | No
all Doubie
Vahicles Deck
huses
7 24 72 13 89 260 313

The number of wind speed restrictions was considerably higher than previous years with full closures
being implemented on 7 occasions. Five of the elosures ocourred in the 4 wesk period between 8
December 2011 and 3 January 2012. The number of other restrictions due to high winds aiso increased
substantiaily.

Staffing Issues

taff Establishmen

There has been no change to the number of permanent posts within the staff establishment which stands
as follows:-

Admi

nistration

Operational
Maintenance
Cleaner (P/T}

Total

lain Mackinnon
Bridge Manager
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
28 September 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
TREASURER'S REPORT

Introduction
This report is Intended as a commentary on the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board’s financial position, as presented
within the Statement of Accounts for the financial year 2011/2012.

Statement of Responslbliities for the Statement of Accounts {see page 9)
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Board and the Treasurer.

The Accounting Statements (see pages 10 to 41)

Movement in Reserves Statement:
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Board, analysed into
'usable reserves' {i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure} and ‘unusabie reserves'.

Comprehensive Income & Expendilure Account:
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices.

Balfance Sheet;
Shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.

Cash Flow Sfatement:
Shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period.

Notes fo the Financial Stafements:

These are intended to give the reader further information which is not separately detailed in the financlal
stalements. They also Include the Accounting Policies which set out the basis upon which the financial
statements have been prepared and explains the accounting treatment of both general and specific items.

Annual Govearnance Statement (see page 42)

This statement sets out the Board’s Corporate Governance arrangements, explaining how the Board conducts
its business, both internally and in its dealings with others. The main components of the sysiem are listed,
together with any significant weaknesses that have been identified and the remedial action taken.

Remunaration Report (see paga 44)
This statement sets out the remuneration and accrued pension benefits of the senior employse of the Board
and the policy context, in accordance with Scottish Government regulations.

Revenue Expenditure

The Tay Road Bridge Joint Board, at its meeting on 13 December 2010, approved the 2011/2012 Revenue
Budget. The final budget showed a break-even position. The projected General Reserve balance as at 31
March 2012 would be £1,107.451. However, subsequent underspends totalling £53,140 were achieved in
2010/2011 (after the budget for 2011/2012 was set) which had the effect that the projected General Reserve
balance as at 31 March 2012 increased {o £1,160,591.

The Board received quarterly Revenus Monitoring reports during 2011/2012 in order to keep the members
fully appraised as to the projected revenue outtum position.

The following table reconciles the Revenue Budget approved by the Board on 13 December 2010 to the
revised budget figures that are included In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shown on
page 11. The actual outturn for 2011/2012 was a net overspend against budget of £9,000 and the detailed
variance analysis Is set out on pages 6 and 7.



- (1ot}  Oo1'y) - - - - - - - (tor's)
- (191't) {LoL'y) - - - - - - - (1o1'1)
4A] 0L6'6 1166 - Ll 0SE'LL £ - {£st'L) - -
() {gee) {21€) {(118) - - - - - - -
5 (see'sy  (pes's) ZLE (11) (ose'LL) (©) - £st'l - -
- 65 65e ege - - - - - - -
B (ove's)  (6v5'6)  (BE) (1) {ose’bt) (&) - £SY'L - -
oLl (oge'zL)  (oo0'cr) - - {oge'Ly) - - - - (os9'L)
{£L) (v6) {eg) (sv) {11) - - (8} - - (s1)
g {£) (8) - - - () oL - - (ct)
(c6) 6v0'c TrL'e 1L - - - {2) £5F'L - 089'1
() zZ A - - - - - . 2 74 -
- £54'1 £S¥'L - - - - - £o¥'L - -
{o1) el LS - - - - - - (o1) 2]
z ae og - - - - - - - ag
(02) 51z Log - - - - - - {r1) Sie
(6t) zv 19 - - - - () - - £9
{ge) 80'L gLL'L LL - - - - - - 5014
0003  0CO0F 0003 000F 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003 0003
puedg (owoou)) 1ebBpng  slpy sPssy JuRin 51955y dxg g oy uonesoly  uopeaoje 1e8png
(1epun) fpuadxg  pasiAay 6L SWI Sddjo  |epden jo resodsjg  Apedoyd puauujeduy -ay panoiddy
[19A0 MmOy uopen  posjuBosoy uDIsSOTTI0  JuUBUASPAL] g 2109

~JEADY {ueolieN  ejedolie-9y uopedaidag IfeidOWeq

1N » diop

pmyfo
aouR|eg SAISSIY [ersUBs)

pMyg
aoupjeg) aAISSEY |RIAUID

usyeq fsniding) [FoL
suswisnipy Bugunosay
epod Sy 48UI0
syusunsnipy g1 S

ainjjpuedxgy g 2oL
aasusyardwog mo)
SOMIqeL] { $188SY UOjSUB.]
U0 $8S507 f SUES) BUBnlOY

QIAIDG JO UO|SADLH
o Yayad / (sniding)

BuIos} el ayreds-uoN

amnypusdxg g awooy)
ueunseau) 3 Gupueu
amypusadg

» swoou Supesrsdo IBUYIO

aimjpusdxd 1o 156
SIS0 peinquIsSIa HON
100

apenowag y s)iodion
wawnedus) g uohenaidag
swowfed Aed put
1500 podsuesy,

samalag pus sanddng
s1807) Apadaig

sis0) jesg



Staff Cosis {Underspend £38,000)
Mainly reflects posts that have been held vacant during the year. In addition, expenditure on ove time has
been lower than budgeted following a reduction in the level of overtime worked due to the bridge gantries
being unavailable during the year.

Property Costs (Underspend £19,000}
Reflects lower expenditure relating to electricity costs due to a new contract being negotiated at the start of
the year. In addition, expenditure on ground malntenance at the Fife landfall has reduced foliowing the
decision to take these dutles in-house.

Supplies & Services (Underspend £26,000)

Due to ongoing capital contracts there was a reduction in the amount of bridge maintenance work carried out
during the year which has resuited in lower than anticipated expenditure on the purchase of equip nent and
materials, plant hire and other miscellaneous supplies and services. Additionally, there was an underspend
on de-icing materlals due to the mild winter. These variances were partly offset by additional costs incurred
on upgrading weather monitoring software and unplanned repairs required to the road barrier at Fife and the
wallway I,

Transport Cosis { Overspend £2,000)

Reflects increased expenditure on repairs and maintenance as unplanned repalrs were required on cne of the
vehicles. This was partly offset by minor underspends In a number of budget headings including travel and
subsistence, and business mileage as more training has either been brought in-house or on-sits.

Third Party Payments ( Underspend £10,000) .

Refiects savings relating to the Pler Scour Protection survey being delayed to colncide with the Pler Collision
Protection Works in 2012/2013, as well as a shortfall In the amount of professional fees for the cathodic
protection system due to lack of access, and reduced charges for police services as the terms were
renegotiated with Tayside Police. These variances were partly offset by additionat professional fees required
due to an increase in structural inspections required.

Gorporate and Democratic Cora Costs ( Underspand £2,000)
Due to a reduction in external audit fees.

Other Operating Income and Expenditure ( Income Shortfall £5,000)
Refiects the fact that the original budget was over-estimated due to higher levels of income In previous years.

Financing and Investment Income and Expendlture ( Increased Income £13,000)
Reflecis increase in interest received on bank balances due {o higher than anticipated average balances due
to karge amounts of Capital Grant income,

Non-Specific Grant Income { Income Shorifall £110,000)
Reflects the fact that any unused Revenue Grant (with conditions) is o be held in creditors so that it can be
applied to match expenditure in future years.

General Resarve
There was a hreak-even position for the financial year 2011/2012, This gives a total General Reserve balance
of £1,160,591 at 31 March 2012,

Capital Expenditure and Financing
During 2011/2012, the Board incurred capital expenditure of £6,122,000 on the following projects:-



Nerth Approach Viaduct Remedial Warks 7
GCarriageway Resurfacing 8
Gantry 14
Fife Abutment Bearing Replacement 40
Pler Coliision Protection 5,852
Advanced Warning Signs 7
Other Projects _98

6122
Capital expenditure was funded as follows:

£000
Capitai Grant from the Scottish Government 6,119
Capiltal Receipts 3

6,122

In addition to above, an asset of £2.55m has been recognised in the Balance Sheet {2010/2011 Restated -
£1.91m). This relates to the new western off-ramp which had been constructed by Dundee City Councll as
part of the central waterfront development and subsequently transferred to the Board, as well £0.469m as
assets under constriction at 31 March 2012 which relates to the remalning off-ramps.

Controi of Revenue and Gapital Expenditure

The control of both the revenue and capital expenditure of the Board is an ongoing and substantial exercise
which requires a positive contribution from staff and eiected members to ensure that the Board's financial
objectives are achleved and that financial resources are fully utilised.

Pension Liabliity ({AS 19)

Under IAS 19 {Empioyee Benefits) the Board is required to include figures in its Statement of Accounts
reiating to the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pension schemes for its employess. [ has
been estimated that the Board had a net pension llability of £2,072,000 as at 31 March 2012, The estimated
net pension liability at 31 March 2011 was £1,747,000. A decrease in the real interest rate and changes in the
underlying assumptions used to calculate scheme liabllities have caused an Increase in liabliities. This was
partly offset by an Increase in the value of scheme assets, resulfing in the overall net liabiiity Increasing by
£325,000.

Acknowledgements

During the 201172012 financial year the Board's financlal position has required continuous scrutiny and strict
budgetary control, | would like {o thank the Bridge Manager, Bridge Enginesr and their staff in controlling the
Board's expenditure and income. In addition, f wish to mention my appreciation of the help and co-operation
provided during the financial year by the elected members and by Patricia Mcliguham, Clerk to the Beard.

| would also like to acknowledge the support and contribution made by Patricta Meliguham who retired in
March 2012 after holding the position of Clerk to the Board for 16 years. Furthermore, | also wish to extend
my appreciation for the coniribution made by the current chair, Andrew Arbuckle, who Is not seeking re-
election to Fife Council and has stood down as chair after the Local Government elections on 3 May 2012,

Finally,  would conclude my report by thanking all staff who contributed te the preparation of the Board's
2011/2012 Statement of Accounts.
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Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

28 September 2012



TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsiblilty

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is responsible for ensuring that its business Is conducted in accordance with the
law and appropriate standards. This is o ensure that public funds and assets at its disposal are safeguarded,
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently, effectively, and ethically. The Board also has a duly
{o make arrangements to sectre confinuous Improvement in the way its functions are carried out.

in discharging these responsibiiities elected members and senior officers are responsible for implementing
effective arrangements for governing the Board's affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions,
including arrangements for the management of risk.

To this end the Board has approved and adopted a locai Code of Corporate Governance that is consistent
with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance In Local Government. This
statement explains how Tay Road Bridge Joint Board delivers good governance and reviews the effectiveness
of these arrangements.

The Board's Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, cultures and values by which the Board Is
directed and controlled. [t also describes the way it engages with and accounts to stakeholders. It enables
the Board to monitor the achisvement of its strategic objectives and consider whether those objectives have
led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The framework reflects the arrangements in place to meet the six supporting principles of effective corporate
govemance. These are as follows:

e focusing on the purpose of the Board and on oufcomes for the community and creating and
implementing a vision for the local area;

* m%mbars and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions
and roles;

» promoting values for the Board and demonstrating the values of goed governance through upholding
high standards of conduct and behaviour;
taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk;
developing the capacity and capabllities of members and officers to be effective; and

« engaging with local people and other stakehoiders to ensure robust public accountability.

Within the overall control arrangements the system of internal financial control is intended to ensure that
assels are safeguarded, transactions are authorised and properly recorded, and material errors or
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period. 1t Is based on a framework of
regular management information, financial regulations, administrative procedures and management
supervislon.

The overall control arrangements includs:

identifying the Board's objectives in the Service Plan;

monitoring of objectives by the Board and senior officers;

reporting performanca regularly to Board mestings;

clearly defined Standing Orders and Schemes of Administration covering Financial Reguiations;,
Tender Procedures and Delegation of Powers;

« approved Fraud Guidelines which include anti-fraud and corruption strategies, and "whistie-blowing®
arrangements;

setting targets to measure financial and service performance; and

formal revenue and capital budgetary control systems and procedures.

Additionally, in order to support Chief Financial Officers in the fulfilment of their duties and to ensure that local
authority organisations have access {o effective financial advice of the highest level, CIFFA's Role of the Chief
Financial Officer has introduced a "comply or explain® requirement in the Annual Statement of Accounts.



Review of Effactivenasss

Members and officers of the Board are committed to the concept of sound governance and the effeclive
delivery of Board services and take into account comments made by internal and external auditors.

In addition the Board have made a self-assessment of their own arrangements. This involved the compietion,
by the Bridge Manager, of a 56-point checklist covering the six supporting principles defined in
CIPFAISOLACE's Defivering Good Governance in Local Government. This indicated a high level of
compliance,

Tha Board's Internal Audit Service operates in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Interna! Audit
in Local Government in the Uniled Kingdom and reports to the Board. Internal Audit undertakes an annual
programme of work, which is reported to the Board. The internal Auditor provides an independent opinion on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal control.

The Treasurer complies with tha principles set out in CIPFA's Rofe of the Chiaf Financial Officer.
Continuous Improvement Agenda

The following areas were identified by the Bridge Manager In the self-assessment checklists completed as
part of the Board's assurance gathering process where further improvement could bea made:

s Devalop a formal complaints procedure.

During 2011/2012, Internal Audit conducted a review of the Comorate Governance and Planning
arrangemants in place at the Board. This identifled the following areas where further improvements could be
made:

+ Update the current Code of Corporate Governance o inciude a section which identifies the key
partnerships and relationships that the Board has with other bodies;

» Update the current Code of Corporate Governance to reflect changes made since tha intfroduction of
the Business Continuity Plan and changes in both external and internal auditors; and

+ Davelop a formal complaints procedure (taking account of updated guidance still to be issued by the
Scottish Ombudsman's Office).

It 1s proposed over 2012/13 steps are taken to address the items identified in the Continuous Improvement
Agenda to further enhance the Board's governance arrangements,

The annual review demonstrates sufficient evidence that the code’s principles of delivering good governance

in local government operated effectively and the Board complles with the Local Code of Corporate
Governanse in all significant respects.

oAl s A la V‘/(MJW

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA lain MacKinnon

Treasurer Britdge Manager

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
28 September 2012 28 September 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT
INTRODUCTION

The Board is required to prepare and publish within Its Statement of Accounts an annual Remuneratfon
Report under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2011 (Scottish Statutory
instrument No. 2011/64), which came into force on 31 March 2011. "fhe report sets out the remuneration and
accrued pension benefits of the Senlor Employees of the Board. The report also provides information on the
number of Board employees (including Senior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or
more, this information being disclosed in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000. No Councillors receive
remuneration from the Board, The following report has been prepared in accordance with the afarementioned
Regulations and also in accordance with the non-statutory guidance set out in Scottish Government Finance
Circular 8/2011, issued on 13 May 2011,

The Board's External Audhtor is required to audit certain parts of the Remuneration Report and glve a separale
opinion in his report on the Statement of Accounts as to whether the Remuneration Report has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Regulations. Tables 1 and 2 are subject to audit, and the remainder of the
report Is subject to review.

REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

Senior Board Members

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman do not receive any remuneration {2010/2011: Nil remuneration).
Senior Employess

The salary of Senior Employees Is set by reference to national agreements, The salaries of senior amployees
of the Board take Into account the dulies and responsibilities of their posts. The Board is responsible for
agreeing the salaries of senior employees. All Board employees are entitled to participate in Dundee City
Councll's Contract Car Hira Scheme, subject to meeting certain criteria. The Councll's Policy & Resources
Commiltee is also responsible for agreeing the terms of the Contract Car Hire Scheme.

For the purposes of the Remunaration Report, the Regulations set out the foilowlng criteria for designation as
a Senior Employee of the Board:

] has responsibility for management of the Board lo the extent that the person has power to direct or
control the major activities of the Board (including activities involving the expenditure of money),
during the year to which the Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other parsons;

{ii) holds @ post that Is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1)(a), (b) or (c) of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989; or

{iil) annual remuneration, including any remuneration fram a local authority subsidiary body, is £150,000
or more.

The Board has determined that one employee met the criterla for designation as a Senior Employea in
2014/2012, with the employee falling into category {I) above. The remuneration details for the Senior
Employees of the Board are set out in Table 1,

The Regulations also require information to be published on the total number of Board employess {including
Seanior Employees) whose total actual remuneration was £50,000 or more. This information is to be disclosed
in salary bandings of £5,000 above £50,000 and Is shown in the following table.

No of No of
Remunaeration Bands Employees Employees
2011/2012 2010/2011
£50,000 - £54,999 - -
£55,000 - £59,908 1 1
Total 1 1

1"



EXIT PACKAGES
There were no exil packages agreed during 2011/2012 (2010/2011: No exit packages agreed).
ACCRUED PENSION BENEFITS

Pension benefits for Logal Government Employees are provided through the Local Government Penslon
Schemea (LGPS). Local Government Employees pension benefits are a final salary pension scheme. This
means that pension benefils are based on the final year's pay and the number years that the person has been
a member of the scheme. The scheme’s normal retirement age for Local Government Employees is 65.

From 1 April 2008 a five tier conirlbution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost
and benefits of scheme membership. Prior to 2008, contribution rates were set at 6% for all non-manuai
employees. The tiers and members contribulion rates for 2011/2012 remain at the 2009/2010 rates and are
as follows:

Contributlon Contributian
Whole Time Pay Rate 2011/2012 Rate 2010/2011
On earnings up to and including £18,000 5.5% 5.5%
On earnings above £18,000 and up o £22 000 7.25% 7.26%
On earmings above £22,000 and up to £30,000 8.5% 8.5%
On earnings above £30,000 and up to £40,000 9.5% 9.5%
On earnings above £40,000 12% 12%

If a person works part-lime their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-tima pay rate for the job, with
actual contributions paid on aciual pay earned.

There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute} pension for lump
sum up to the imit set by the Finance Act 2004, The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on 160" of
final pensionable salary and yaars of pensionable service. Prior to 2009 the accrual rate guaranteed a
pension based on 1/80™ and a lump sum based on 3/80™ of final pensionable salary and years of pensionable
sefvice,

Senior Employees
The accrued pension benefits for Senior Employees are set out in Table 2, together with the pension
contributions made by the Board.

Assumptions and Contextual Informatlon

Thea value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will
first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without raduction on account of #is payment at that
age; without exercising any option to commute penslon entitiement into a lump sum; and without any
adjustment for the effects of future Infiation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the petson
has accrued as a consaguence of their total Local Government service and not just their current appointment.

In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information should be taken into
account;

) the figures for pension and ump sum are iflustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and
do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may recelve upon retiremant.

(i) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the
scheme member have made over a period of time. In 2011/2012, the scheme member contribution
rate for Senior Employees of the Board was 8.6% of pensionable pay. In 2011/2012, the employer
contribution rate was 18.5% of pensionable pay for Senior Employaes.

MU, BB et

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Jo!nt Board

28 September 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Joint Board's respansibilities

The Joint Board is required to:

» make arrangaments for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. [n this Joint Board, that officer is the
Treasurer;

+ manags its affairs to secura economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

+ approve the Audited Statement of Accounts,

The Treasurst’'s responsibllities

The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Joint Board's statement of accounts in accordance with

proper practices set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Kingdom ("the Code').

in preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has:

* selected suitable accounting policles and then applied them consistently;

+ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

« complied with the Code of Practice.

The Treasurer has also:
¢ kept proper accounting records which were up o date;
* taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Statement of Accounts presenis a true and fair view of the financial position of the Joint Board at the
accounting date and its income and expanditure for the year ended 31 March 2012,

Marjory M Stewart, FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer

Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

2B Septembar 2012
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows lhe movement in the year on the different reservas heid by the Board, analysed inlo ‘usable
reserves’ (L.e. those that can ba appilad to fund expenditure } and ‘unusabie reserves.! The Surpius or (Deficit) on the
Provision of Sarvicas line shows (he true econcmie cost of providing the Board's services, more detaiis of which are shown
in the Comprehensiva income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be
charged to the General Reserve Balance. Tha Net increase / {Decreass) before Transfers to Earmarked Resarves line
shows the statulory General Reserve balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves
undsartaken by the Board.

Capital
Ganarzl Granls Totai Totai
Fund Unapplisd Usabis Unusable Board
Balance Account Regarves Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2010 (1,454} {1,504} {2,088)  [47,252) (30,210}
Movement In Reservas ing 2010/41
{Restated per Note 1D}
Surpius or {deficit} on provision of
sepvices {3,398) - {3,308) - (3,398)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure
and income - - - {604) (604)
Totai Comprehenslve Expenditura and
income {(3,308) - {3,398) (604) (4,002)
Adjustments between accounting basis
& funding basls under reguiations {note 4} 3,691 {1,035) __ 2,656 {2,658) “
Net (increase) /Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 293 {1,035) {742) (3,260) {4,002)
Transfers to / {from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
(increass) / Decrease in 2010/11 293 {1,035) (742) {3,260) {4,002)
Baiance at 31 March 2011 catried
forward {1,181) {2,539} (3.700)  (50,512)  (54,212)
Movament in Rese du 011112
Surplus or {deficit) on provision of
services {9,940} - {9,940} - {2,940)
Other Comprehensive Expenditure and
income - - - 355 355
Total Comprehensive Expenditure and
income {9,540) - {9,5940) 355 {9,585)
Adjustmenls between accounting basis &
funding basis under reguiations {nota 4) 9 940 {2,681) 7,259 (7,258) -
Net {increase) / Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarkad Raserves - {2,681) {2,681) {6,904) {9,585)
Transfers o / {(from) Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
{Increase) / Decrease in Year - {2,681) (2,661} {5,904) (9,585)
Balance at31 Marsh 2012 carried
forward {1,16%) {5,220} {6,381) (57,416) {63,797}
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This statement shows the accounting cost in he year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practicas,

2010/2011 (Restated par Note 1D) 201172012
Budgsted
Gross Gross Net Net Gross Gross Net
Expsnditure Income  Expendifure Expenditure Expsnditite  incoms  Expendliure
! {income} {unaudited) {{income)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expanditure
1,106 - 1,106 Staff Costs 1,116 1,078 - 1,078
68 - 68 Property Cosls 61 42 - 42
289 - 289 Supplles and Services 3 215 - 275
29 - 29 Transporl Cosls 26 3n - 38
137 - 137 Third Party Payments 151 141 - 14
1,442 - 1,442 Depraciation & Impalrment 1,463 1,453 - 1,453
23 . 23 ggzorate and Democratic 54 a9 i} 22
- {554) (554)  Non Distributed Costs - - . .
3,084  (554) 2,540 Cost Of Services 3,142 3,049 - 3,049
Cther Opsratling income &
70 @ 68 Expenditure {note 5) @) ) @) &
Flnancing and Investment
63 {37 26 Income and Expenditure {83) 1 (97} {96)
(note 6}
- (6032)  (6032)  orSpecific Grant lncome 405 « (12,800}  (12,890)
{note 7}
{Surplus) or Deficit on
3,227  {6,625) {3,398)  Provision of Services {9,948) 3,050 (12,980 (9,940)
{note 13)
. . . {Surplus) or deflck on . . .
revaluation of fixed assetls -
Actuanial (Gaing) / Losses on
" {604) (604) Pension Assals / Liablities 355 355 . 335
. Other Comprehensive S
{604) (604) Income and Expenditura 355 o 355 " 355__
3227 (7220) (4002 1o Comprehensiva g o, 3405  (12990)  (9,585)

Income and Expenditure
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
BALANCE SHEET

Tha Balance Shest shows the value as at the Baiance Shest date of the assets and ilablilties recognised by the Board.
The net assels of the Board {assels iess Hiablitlas) are matched by the reserves held by the Board. Resarves ane reporied
in two categeries. The first category of reserves is usable resarves, i.8. those reserves that the Board may use to provide
services, subject to the nead to malntain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory {imitations on their uss {for exampia
the Capltai Receipis Reserve that may oniy be used to fund capital expenditure). The second category of reserves Is
unusable reserves i.e. those that the Board Is not able to use o provide services, This category of reserves includes
raserves that hold unrealised gains and iosses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounls would oniy
become avallable to provide services If the assels are soid; and reserves that hoid Uming diffsrences shown in the
Movemant In Reserves Statement fine *Adjustmants betwesn accounting basis and funding basis under reguiations’,

31 March

1 April 2011 34 March

2010 (Restatad Nots 2012

per Note
1D)

£000 £000 £000
439,844 52,150 Properly, Plant & Equipment 20 59,368
59 73 Investment Property 18 85
50,002 52,223 Totai Long Term Assets 58,453
52 47 Inventories 22 47
196 20  Short Term Dabtors 23 581
351 4,076 Cash and Cash Equivaients 12 8,155
3,759 4,143  Totai Current Assels 8,783
{758) {406}  Shorl Term Creditors 24 {2,367)
{758) (406} Total Current Liabliities {2,387}
(2,793) {1,747) _ Net Pension Liabllities {2.072)
{2,793} {1,747) Total Long Term Liabilitles {2,072)
50,211 54,213 NetAssels 83,797
2,958 3,700 Usabls reserves 8 5,381
47,253 50,513  Unusabie Reserves 9 57,416
50,211 54213 Total Reserves 63,787

Marjory Stewart FCCA, CPFA
Treasurer
Tay Road Bridge Joint Board

The unaudiled accounts wera issued on & Juna 2012 and the audited accounts were authorised for issue on 28
Seplember 2012,
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows tha changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Board during the reporting period. The
stalement shows how the Beard gensratas and uses cash and cash equivaisnis by classifying cash flows as operating,
investing and financing activiiies. The amount of net cash flows arising from oparating activities is a key indleator of the
sxtent to which the oparations of the Board are funded by way of grant Incoms or from the recipients of services provided
by tha Board. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash cutfiows have been made for resources which are
Infended to contribute to the Board's future service delivery, Cash flows arising from finaneing activitias are usefud in
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capitai {l.e. borrawling) to the Board.

2010111
{Rastated 201112
per Nota
1D)
£000 £000
(3,398) Net (surplus) or deficlt on the provision of services {9,940)
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of sepvices for non
{(939) cash movemenis (954}
Adjust for items included In the net surplus or deficit on the
4,596 provision of services that are investing and financing activiles 11,273
259 Netcash flows from Operating Actlvitles 379
(812) investing Activities (note 10) (4,445)
(12) Financing Aclivitles {note 11) {13)
{865) Net (increase} or Decrease in cash 2nd cash aquivalents {4,079}
3,511 Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the reporling pericd 4,076
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period
8,155

4,076 (nota 12)
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TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A General Principles

The Stalement of Accounls summarises (he Board's transactions for the 2011/2012 financiai year and its position
at the year-and of 31 March 2012, The Board is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Local
Aulhorily Accounts (Scotfand) Regulations 1985. Section 12 of the Locat Government in Scotland Act 2003
raquires that they be prepared in accordance wilh proper accounting praclices. These practices primarily comprise
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdem 2011/12 and the Service Reporting
Code of Practice 2011/12, supported by Intemalional Financiai Reporting Standards (iFRS). The accounting
convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of cerlain
eategories of non-currant agsels.

8 Accruals of income and Expenditure

Activity Is accounted for In the year that It takes place, not simply when cash paymants are made of recelved. in
particular

. Revenue from the sale of goods Is recognised when the Board transfers the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potentiat assoclated with
the transaction wili fliow to the Board.

. Revenue from the provision of services Is recognised when the Board can measure reliably the
percentage of complation of the transaction and It is probable that economlc benefils or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow 1o the Board.

. Supplles are recorded as expendiiure when they are consumed — where there [5 a gap betwesn lhe dale
suppiles are receivad and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance SheeL

. Expenses in relation to seivices received (including those rendered by the Board's employaes) are
recorded as expenditure when {he services ara recelved, mther than when payments ara made.

. Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or pald, a deblor
or creditor for the relavant amount is recordad In the Balance Sheet. Whare there is evidence that debls
are unlikely to be setlied, the balance of deblors Is wrilten down and a charge made to revenus for the
incomne that might not be coliected.

C Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is reprasentad by cash in hand and deposits with flnanclal institutions repayable without penaity on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents comprise shorl term lending that is repayabie on demand or within 3
months of the Balance Sheet date and ihat is readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. In the Cash Fiow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank ovardrafis that are
repayable on demand and form an Integrai part of the Board's cash management.

D Changes in Accounting Poiicles and Estlmatas and Errors

Changes in accounting policies are oniy made when required by propar accounting practices or when the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effact of transactions, olher svents and conditions on the
Board's financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, It is applied relrospeclively by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always baen
appiled. Changss in accounting sslimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years
affected by the change. Material errors discoverad In prior period Migures are comrected relrospectively by amending
opening baiances and comparative amounls for the prior pariod.

There has been a restatement of the prior period due to an emor identified In the 2010/2011 financial statemanls,
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whereby an amount of granl income totalling £1.91m was not accounted for in 20102011, this has been applled for
capital purposes in crealing an asset under consbruclion. Addltionally, an amount of £70,000 for the de-recognition
of the camying amount of the replaced asset was omitted (sse Note 28).

E Charges to Revenue for Non-Currenl Assets

The Comprehansive income and Expenditure Statement Is debited with the followlng amounis to record the cost of
holding fixed assels during the year

. deprecialion attribulabie to the assets used by the relevant service

. ravalualion and Impaimment losses on assets used by the service whers there are no accumuiatad gains In
the Revaluation Reserve agalnst which the losses can be writlen off

The Board is not required to apply revenue grant recelpts lo fund depreciation, revaiuation and Impalment losses.
Pepreciation, revaluation and impalment fosses are therefore revarsed by way of an adjusting transaction with tha
Capital Adjustmenl Account in the Movetment In Reserves Statament,

F Employee Benefits

Benefits Payable Dyring Employmeant

Short-tarm empioyee benefils {those that fali due wholly within 12 months of the year-end), such as wagas and
salaries, pald annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monstary beneflls (e.g. cars) for current
employees, are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service lo tha Board. An
accruaj Is made against Staff Costs In the Surpius or Deficit on the Provislon of Services for the cost of hoilday
enliliements and ofher forms of leave eamed by employess bul nol laken before the year-end and which
employeeas can carry forward into the next financlal year. The accrual is made al the remuneration rates appiicable
In the following financial year. Any accrual made Is required under staluie to bs reversed out of the Genersi
Reserve by a credit to the Accumulaling Compensated Absences Adjustmenl Account in the Movement In
Reserves Stalsment.

Tennination Beneflts

Temmination beneflts are amounls payable ag a resuil of a decision by the Board o terminate an employee's
employment befare the normal retirement dale or an employee's decision io accept voluntary redundancy and are
charged on an accruals basis to the Non Dislribuled Costs iine in the Comprehensive income and Expendiure
Account when the Board Is demonsirabily committed lo sither terminating the empioyiment of an employee or group
of employees or meaking an offer to encourage voiuntary redundancy. Where lemnination benefils involve the
enhancement of pensions, slatutary provisions require the Generai Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payabie by the Board 1o he penslon fund or pensloner in the year, not the amount caiculated according to
the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement In Reserves Slalemeni, appropriations are required lo and
from the Penslons Reserve {o remove the notional debils and credits for termination banedils reiated to pensions
enhancamenis and replace them with debits for the cash pald to the pension fund and pensionsrs and any such
amounts payable bulunpaid at the year-end.

ast Em nt Benafits
Employees of the Board are members of a separale pension scheme baing the Local Govemment Superannuation
Scheme (Tayside Superannualion Fund), a defined henelits scheme which is administered by Dundse City
Councll, The schems provides dsfined benefils lo members (fatirement lump sums and pensions), eamed as
employees warked for the Board,

The Local Govemmeant Pension Scheme Is accounted for as a defined benelits scheme:

. The ilabillies of the Tayside Superannuation Fund attributable o the Board are included In the Balance
Sheet on an acluaral basis using the projected unlt method — Le. an assassment of tha fulure paymants
that wiil be mads in relalion to retirement benefits eamed to date by employess, based on assumptions
aboul moriailly rates, employes tumover rates elg, and projections of eamings for current employees.
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. Liabilities are discounled lo thelr value at cument prices, using a discount rate of 4.6% (based on the
indigalive rale of retumn on high gually corporale bond, [Boxx AA raled over 16 year corporate band
Index).

. The assets of the Tayside Supsrannuation Fund atlrbutable to the Board are included in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value:

o quoled securilies — current bid price
o unquoled securitles — professional estimate
o unitised secuntles ~ current bid price
o property — markel value,
J The change in the net pensions iiability is analysed nlo seven components:

o current senvice cost — the increase In ifabililies as resuit of years of service eamed this year —
aliocated In the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Statement 1o Staff Cosls

o past service cosl — the increase in iiablilies ansing from cument year declsions whose &ffect
relates to years of service eamed In earfler years — deblled o the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision
of Services In (he Comprahensive income and Expendilure Statement as part of Non Distributed
Costs

o Interssl cost — the expected Increasa In the present vaiue of ilabiiitles during the year as they
move one year closer to being peld - debited to the Financing and invesiment income and
Expenditure ling In the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement

o expacted relum on assets ~ tha annual Investment relum on the fund assats atifbulabie to the
Board, based on an average of lhe expected lang-term relum - crediled lo the Financing and
Investment thcome and Expenditure line In the Comprehenslve income and Expendilure
Statement

o gainsflossas on seliements and curialiments — the resuit of actions to relieve the Board of
fiabilllles or events thal reduce the expecied future service or accruai of benefits of smployees -
debited/credited 1o the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprahensive income
and Expendilure Slatement as part of Non Distributed Cosls

o actuarial galns and losses - changes in the nel pensions liablity that arise because evenls have
not co-incided with assumptions made at the iast acluarial vaiuation or because the acluariaes
have updaled their assumptions - debited lo the Pensions Reserve

o contributicns pald to the Tayside Suparannuation Fund — cash pald as empioyer's contributions
to the pension fund in setilement of llabilities; not accounted for as an expensa.

In relation o retiremenl benefits, statutory provislons require the General Reserve balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Board lo the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calcuialed
according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Slatemsnl, this means that there
are appropriations to and from the Penslons Reserve to remove Lhe nolional deblls and credits for relrament
benefits and rsplace them with debits for the cash paid to the pansion fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negalive balance that arises on the Pensions Reserva thareby measuras
the beneficlal impacl on the General Reserve of being required 1o account for reliremsnt benefits on the basis of
cash flows ralher than as benefits are samed by amployees.

Discrationary Benefils

The Board also has restricled powers lo make discretionary awards of relirement henefits in lhe evenl of early
relirements. Any liabilitios estimated to arfise as a result of an award lo any member of slaif are accrued in the year
of the deciglon lo make the award and accountsd for uging the same poiicles as are appiled io the Local
Govemment Pension Scheme.

G Events After tha Reporting Period

Events after the reporling peviod are thase evenls, bolk favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end

of the reporiing period and the dale when the Slatement of Accounts is authorised for Issue, Two types of evenls
21



can be identified:

. those Lhat provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting perod — the Statement of
Accounts is adjusied o reflect such events

. thosa that are Indicative of condillons that arose after the reporting period — the Slatement of Accounts Is
not adjusted lo reflect such events, bul where a calegory of events would have a matarial effect disclosure
is made In the notes of the nature of the events and thelr estimated financial effect

Events taking place after the dale of autherisation for Issue ars nol reflectad in the Slatement of Accounts,
H Governmanl Grants and Contributions

Whether pald on account, by Inslaiments or in arears, govemmenl grants and third parly contribulions and
denations are recognised as due to the Board when (hera Is reasonabie assurance that:

. the Board will compiy with the conditions aftached to the payments, and
. the grants or conirdbulions will be recelved

Amounts recognised as due o the Board ams not crediled to the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Account
unlii condilions attaching lo the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Condifions are stipulations that specify
that the future sconomic benefits or service polential embodied In the assst acquired using the grant or contribution
are rsquired to ba consumed by the reciplent as speclfied or fulure economic benefils or service potential musl be
retumed to the lansforor. Monles advanced as granis and conlributions for which condilions have nol been
salisfied are caried in the Baiance Sheet as credilors, When conditlons are salisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the reievant line (Non-Specific Granl income) in the Comprehensive income and Expendilure
Statement. Where capital grants are credited lo the Comprahensive incoms and Expendilure Stalement, they are
reversed out of the General Reserve Balance in the Movement in Reserves Stalemenl. Where the grant has yet to
be used to finance capilai expendilure, it is posted lo the Caplial Grants Unappiied Account. Where it has been
applied, it is posled lo the Capltal Adjustmenl Account, Amounts in the Capilai Grants Unappiled Account are
transferred to the Capilai Adjusiment Account once they have been appilad.

I Heritags Assets

The Board's Heritage Assats are heid in support of the primary objective of increasing knowledge, undersianding
and apprscialion of the history of the Tay Road Bridge and the surrounding area. Herilage assets ams recognised
and measured (including the treatmenl of rvaluation gains and losses) In accordance wilth the Board's accounting
policies on properly, plant and aquipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in reiation io
herilage assels as delalled below. The accounting palicies In reialion 1o herilage assets are also presented below.

The Board's heritage assels are accounted for as follows:

Hertags Asgets Not Recognised in lhe Balance Shast

The Board holds herilage assels which, in fight of tha relaxation of measurement rutes, are not recognised in the
balance sheel. The Board considers that, due to the unique nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable
values, the coslt of obialning valuations would be disproporiionala in refation to (he bensfits (o the users of the
Board's financial stalements, As a resull, falr vaiue formatlon §s unavallable and cost informallan is aiso
unknown. These assets are lherefore nol recognised in the balance sheel, however, detailed information regarding
lhem Is heid on relevant dalabases.

Herilade Assels - Impaimments

The camying amounts of harilage assels are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment, for exampile where
an item has suffered physleal delerioration or breakage. Any impalment Is recognised and measured in
accordance with the Board's general palicles on impalment.

d inventories

inventarias are included In the Balance Sheel at the lower of cost and nst realisable value, The cos! of lnvenlores
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is assigned uslng the First-in-First-out (FIFO) costing formuia.
K investmant Properties

Investment properties are those that are used solely 1o eam rentals andfor for capital appreciation. The dafinition is
not mel if the properly Is used In any way to faciilate the dellvery of services or production of goods or Is heid for
sale. Investment properties are measurad initially at cost and subsequentiy at fair vaiue, based on the amount at
which the assel could be exchanged between knowledgeabie parfles at anm's length. Propertles are nol
depreciated but are revaiusd annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Galns and lossas on
revaluation are posted o the Financing and investment income and Expendilure [ine In the Comprehensive incoms
and Expendiiure Statement. The same treaiment Is applied to galns and losses on disposal. Rentals recelved in
relation to invesiment properties are credited lo the Financing and investment income iine and resultin a galn for
tha General Reserve Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory
arrengemenls to have an impacl on the Balence, The gains and losses are lherefore reversed aut of the Genasral
Resarve Balance in the Movement in Resarves Statemant and posled to the Capitai Adjustmenl Account.

L Leases

Leases are ciassifled as finance leases where the termis of the iease transfer substantially ail the risks and rewards
incidental o ownership of the property, planl or equipment from the lessor lo the lesses, Aii other leases are
classified as operating ieases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the iand and bulidings elements are
consldared separately for classification. Arrangements thal do nol have the legal status of & lease bul convay a
right to use an assat in retum for payment are accounted for under this policy where fuifliment of the amangament
Is depandent on the use of specific assets.

The Board as Legses
Finance Leases

Property, piant and equipmenl held under finance leases Is recognised on the Balance Sheel at the
commencement of the iease togsther with an equivalent defermed ilatliity for the obligation 1o pay (he lesscr. Where
appiicable, any initiai dinect costs of the Board are added to the camying amount of the asset. Any premiums paid
on entry inlo & [ease are applled lo wrillng down the lease flability, Conlingent rents are charged as expenses in
the years In which they ame Incumed.

Lease payments are apportioned betwaen:

+ @ charga for (he acquisition of the Intarest in the property, plant or equipment — appiied to wrils down the
lease liability, and

e @ finance charge {deblled to the Flnancing and investment income and Expenditure ine In ihe
Comprehansiva Income and Expendliure Statement)

Properly, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the relevant accounling
pollcies appiied generaliy to such assels e.9. depreciation, revaiuation and Impaimenl review,

Opsrating Leases

Rentals paid under operaling leases are charged to the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Stalement as an
expense. Charges are made on a slraight-line basis over the ife of the Iease, even if this does nol malch the
paliem of payments (e.g. if there Is a rent-free period at lhe commencement of the lsase).

The Board gs Lessor

Finance Leases

Where Ihe Roard granls a finance lease over a property or an ilem of plant or equipment, the reilevanl asset is
wrilten out of the Balance Sheel as 2 disposal, At the commencement of the fease, the camying amount of the
assel in the Balance Sheet {whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assels Held for Sale) Is written off to the
Other Opsrating Expenditure fine In the Comprshensive income and Expenditure Stalement as part of the gain or
loss on disposal. A gain, represenling-the Board's net Invesiment in the lease, is craditad to the same iine in the
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Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statemenl also as pari of the gain or loss on disposal (La. netled off
against the camying value of the asset al the ime of disposal), malched by a lease asset In the Balanca Sheel.

Lease rentals receivahle are appoeriioned betwaen:

. a charge for the acquisition of the inlerest In the praperty — applled lo write down the lease llabliity
{togethar wiih any premiums rscelvad), and

. finance income (credited to lhe Flnancing and investment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehenslve income and Expenditure Statement)

Cperafing { eases

Where the Board granls an operaling lease over a property or an llem of planl or aquipmant, the asselis rslained
in the Balance Shest as a non-cumrent assel and confinues io be subject to depreciation, revaluation and
impalmenl review, In accordance with the relevant accounting poilcies. Renlal income Is crediled o the
appropriate sarvice fine In the Comprahiensive income and Expendilure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-
fine basis over the iife of the leasse, even if this does not match the pattern of payments {e.g., there is a pramium
pald at the commancement of the lease). Any inilial direct cosls Incurmed In negollaling and amanging the lease are
added to the camrylng amount of the relsvant asset and charged as an expense over the Ieage term on the same
basis as rental income.

M Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical subslance and are heid for use in the produclion or supply of goods or services, for
rental {o others of for adminlstrative pumposes and that are expectsd to be used during mors than one financial year
are classifiod as Property, Plant and Equipment,

Re: lon

Expendilure on lhe acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Piant and Equipment is capilallsed on an
accruals basls, provided that It is probabie that the fulure econemic banefils or service potential assaclaled with the
ilem will flow to the Board and the cost of the tem can be measurad reliably, Expanditure that maintains but does
not add fo an assol's polential to deliver fulure economic benefils or service polential {i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expensa when il is incurred.

B ent
Assets are Initlally measured at cost, compnising:

. the purchase price

. any costs attributable to bringing the assel to the location and condillon necessary for it to be capablé of
opefraling in the manner intended by management

The Board does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under consluction. The cost of assels
acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be lts fair value, uniess the acquisition will not increase the cash
flows of the Board. in the latter cass, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the assst given up by the
Board. Donated asseis are measured Inllfally al fair value, The differsnce between fair value and any
consideration pald is credited to lhe Taxalion and Nen-Specific Granl inceme line of the Comprehensive Income
and Expendilure Slatament, uniess the donalion has besn made conditionaily. Unlil condiiions are sallsfied, the
gain is heid in the Donaled Assels Accounl. Whers gains are credlied o the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Stalement, they are revarsed out of the Generai Reserve Balance 1o the Capllai Adjustment Account
in the Movement in Resarves Statement,

Asgsels are then carrled in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
. Infrastructure — depreciated historical cosl

* all other assels - fair value, delermined as the amount that would be pald for the assat In s existing use
{exlsting use vaiue — EUV)
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Whers there 13 no market-baged evidence of fair valus because of Ihe speclalist nalure of an assel, deprecialad
replacement cost Is used as an eslimate of fair vaiue. Assets included In the Balance Sheel at fair value are
revalued sufficiently regulariy 1o ensure thal lheir carrylng amount Is nol maleriafly different from their falr vaive at
the year-snd, but as a minimum every five years. Increases In valualions are maiched by credils to the
Revaiuaticn Resarva lo recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains mighl be credited to the Comprehensive
incoma and Expendilure Slatement where they arise from the reversal of a revaluation or impairment loss
previously charged to a sarvice. Where decreases in value are identified, the revaluation loss Is accountad for by:

. where there Is a balance of mevaiuation galns for the asset In lhe Revaluation Resetve, the camying
amount of the assel Is wiitten down against that balance {up Io the amounl of the accumulated gains)

. wherse there Is no bakance in the Revatuation Reserve or insufficient balance, the camying amount of the
assel Is written -down against the relevant line(s) in the Comprehensive income and Expendilure
Statement

The Revaluation Reserve contains ravalualion gains recognised since 1 Aprl 2007 only, the date of ils formal
implementation. Galns arising bafore that date have been consolidaled intc the Capilal Adjustment Account.

Impalrment

Assels zre assessed al sach year-end as lo whether there Is any indicalion that an asset may be impalred, Where
Indications exist and any possible differences are estimaled to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is
aslimatad and, where {his is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment ioss Is recognised for the
shortfall, Where impaiment losses are Identifled, they ars accounted for by:

. where there is a balance of revaiuation geins for the asset in the Revalualion Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down agailnst thel baiance (up to the amount of the acoumulaled galns)

. where there Is no balance In the Revaiualion Reserve or insufficient balance, the carmylng amount of the
asset Is wrilten down against the relevant line{s) in the Comprshensive income and Expentiture
Slatement

Where an impaiment loss s revarsed subsequently, the reversal is crediled to the Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure Statemenl, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreclation that would have been
charged if the joss had not been recognised.

Disposalg

When il becomss probable thal the camrying amount of an asset wili be recovered principally through a sale
trangaction rather than through its continuing use, il is reclassified as an Assat Held for Sale. The asset is revalued
immedialely before seciassification and then canied al the lower of this amount and fair value iess casts to sell.
Where thare Is a subsequent decrease lo falr vaiue less cosis o sell, the loss is posted lo the Clher Operating
Expenditura iine in the Comprehensiva income and Expendifure Statement. Gains in falr vaiue are recognised anly
up lo the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depraclation Is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. Assets
that are lo be abandoned or scrapped are nol reclassified as Asssls Heid for Sale.

Whan an assel Is disposed of or decommissioned, the camying amount of the assel in the Balance Shest (whether
Property, Piant and Equipment or Assels Held for Sale) is wiitten off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive income and Expenditure Slatement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Recelpts from
disposals (if any) are credited o the same line in the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Stalement aiso as
part of the gain or loss on disposal {i.2. netted off against the carrylng value of the asset at the Ume of disposai).
Any revalualion gains accumulaled for the asset in (he Revaluation Reserve are Iransferred lo the Capilal
Adjustment Account, Amounts received for disposals are categorised as capilal receipls. The balance of receipts is
required to be cradited to the Capilal Recelpts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investmeant or
sel aside to reduce the Board's undedying need lo bomow (the capllal financing requirement). Recelpts are
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Reserve In the Movement In Reserves Slatement. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Generai Resarve in the Movement In Reserves
Slatement.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Properly, Flanl and Equipmenl assets by the systematic aliocation of their
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depreclable amounts over thelr useful lives. An excaplion Is mads for assets without a delerminable finite usstul
iife {l.e. freehold land) and assets that are not yet available for use {l.8., assets under consiruclion).

Depracalion is calculated on the following bases:
. buiidings ~ siraight-line allocation over the useful iife of the property as estimated by the vaiuer.
) vehicies, plant and equipment ~ straight iine aliocation over between 3 and 10 years.
. infrastructure — stralght-ine aflocation over between 10 and 85 years.

Where an llem of Property, Planl and Equipment asse! has major components whose cosl Is significant in refation
la the total cost of the ilem, the companents are depraciatad separately, Revaiuation galns are aiso depreciated,
with an amount equal to the difference between current vaiue deprecialion charged on assets and the depreciation
thal would have been chargeabie based on thelr hislorical cost belng transferred each year from the Revaluation
Ressrve to the Capllal Adjuslimenl Account.

N Provisions, Conlingent Llabilittes and Contingent Asssts

Provislong
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Board a iegal or constructive chiigalion that

probably requires seffiement by a transfer of economic benefits or service polential, and a rellable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. For example, the Board may be involved In B court case that could
eventually resuil In the making of a sefllemant or the payment of compensation. Provisions are chamged as an
expense to the appropriate line In the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement In the yeear that the
Board bacomes aware of the obilgalion, and measured al the best estimate al the Balance Shest date of the
expendilura required lo satlle the obligation, laking into account relevant risks and uncerainties. When payments
are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried In the Balance Shest. Estimated seillements are
reviewed at the end of each financial year — where il becomes iess than probabie thal a transfer of economic
benefits will now be required (or a lower seltlement than anticlpaled is made), the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant heading. Where some or all of the paymant required to settle a provision Is axpacted
to be recovered from anclher parly (e.g. from an Insurance clalm), this Is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtualiy cerialn that reimbursement will be received if the Board saltles the chiigation,

Con nt Liabliitle

A contingent liabliity arises where an event has laken piace that gives the Board a possibie abligation whoss
aexlstence will only be confimmed by the occurrence or otherwlse of uncertain fulure events nol wholly wilhin the
contrel of the Board, Conlingenl ilabliiies zlso arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made
but eilher it is not probabie thal an outflow of resources will be requlrad o the amounl of the obiigation cannot be
reasured reilably, Contingent fiabiiiles are nol recognised In the Balance Sheet bul are disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

ntingent Assels
A contingent asset arises where an event has laken place that gives Ihe Board a possible assat whose existence
wiil only be confimmed by Lhe occumrence or otherwise of uncertaln fulure events not wholly within the centrol of the
Board. Contingent assets are nol racognised in the Balance Sheet but are distlosed in a note to the accounts
where it is probable that there will be an Inflow of economic benefils or service potential.

0 Reserves

Reserves are created by appropdating amounts out of the General Reserve In the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a resarve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate heading In
hat year to count against the Surpius/Delicit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive income and
Expenditure Statemenl. The raserve is then appropriasted back into the General Reserve Balance in the Movement
in Resarves Statement so thal there Is no nel charge against grant recaipts for the expenditure. Certain resarves
are kepl lo manage the accounting processes for non-cusrent assats, financial Instruments and relirement banefils
and these reserves do nol represent usabie resources far the Board, Further Infarmation o the Boand's reserves is
conlalned in nolas 8 and 9.
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P VAT

VAT payable is included as an sxpanss only 1o the extent that It is not racovarable from Her Majesly's Revenua
and Gustoms. VAT receivable ts excluded from Income.

2, CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN AFPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In appiylng the accounting policies sel out in Note 1, the Board has had lo make certaln judgemsnts aboul fulure
evenls. The key Judgement made in the Slatement of Accounts relates to the high degree of uncertainty about
fulure levels of funding for pubiic bodiss. The Board has delermined that this uncertalnty is nol sufficient to provide
an indication that the assets of the Board might be impaired as a resit of a need to reduce levels of sarvice
provision,

3 ASSUMPTIONS MADE ABOUT THE FUTURE AND OTHER MAJOR SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Statement of Accounts contalns eslimated figures that are based on assumplions made by the Board about
the fulure or lhat are atherwlse uncertain, Estimales are made laking into account historical experience, current
trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be delermined wilh certainty, actual resuits
could be materaliy diferenl from the assumptions and estimates.

The itlems In the Board's Balance Shaet at 31 March 2012 for which thers is a significant risk of material adjustment
in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Effect If Actual Resulls Differ from
_Assumptions

ftam Uncertainties

I the useful iife of assels is
reduced, dapreclation increases
and the carnying amaount of the
assels fails.

Asseis are depreclated over ussfui
livas that are dependent on
assumnptions about the lavel of
repairs and maintenance that will be
Incurrad In relation o individuai
assets. The current aconomic
climate makes [l uncertain that the

Property, Piant and Equipment

it1s eslimated that the annuai
depreciation charge for bulldings

Board will be abie to sustain its would increase by £66,000 for
overy year that useful lives had lo
curent spending on repalrs and
be reduced.

maintenance, bringing Into doubt the
useful lives assigned to assets.

Pensions Liabiily

P

Estimation of the nal llability to pay
penslons depends on a number of
complax judgements relaling to the
discount rate used, the rats al which
safaries are projecied to increase,
changes in relimment ages, mortaity

rales and expeclad relums con pension

fund asssats. A fim of consuiting
actuaries Is engaged to provide the
Board with expert advice about the
assumptions o be applled.
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The effecls on the net pansions
tiabliity of changes in Individual
agsumptions can be measured.
For Instance, a 0.1% increasein
\he discount rate assumption wouid
result in a decreass in lhe pension
itability of £157,000,

However, the assumplions interact
in complex ways. During 2011112,
the Board's acluaries advised that
the net pensions liabiiity had
increased by £529,000 as a resuil
of estimales being correcled es a
restit of experiance and Increased
by £885,000 allribulable to
updaling of the assumptions.
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This {Ist does not include any assets and liabilitles that have are carried at falr value based on a recently observed
market price.

4. MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT - ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACGOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING
BASIS UNDER REGULATIONS

This nole delalls the adjusiments thal are made to the tolal comprehensiva Income and sxpendilure reeognised by
the Board In the yearin accordance with proper accounting practice to the rescurces that are specified by statutary
provislons as being avallable to the Board ta meet futurs capital and revenue expenditure.

20112012 General Capital Grants Movement In

Fund Unapplied Unusabie

Baianca Account Resarves 201112

£000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments invoiving the Capilal Adjustment Account:
Reve f 1L or craditad to the Com iv
Ingome and Expendllure Sialement:
Charges for depradalion and Impalment of non cumrenl {1,483) - 1,453 -
assels
Movements in the fair vaiue of invesiment Propertles 12 . {12} -
Capilai granls and contributions that have been appiied to 8,668 - {8,668) -
capiial financing
Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale 6 - {8) -

as part of Ihe gainfloss on dispesai to the Comprehensive
income and Expandilure Statement

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfar of sale procesds credited as part of the gainfloss - - 3 3
on disposal to the Comprahensive income and Expenditure
Statement

Use of the Caplial Recsipls Reserve to finance new capital 3 - - (3
expenditure

Adjustment involving the Capital Grants Unapplied
Account

Reversal of unapplied capilal grants and contributions 2,681 (2,681) - -
credited o tha Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statament

Adjustments Invoiving the Penslons Reserve;

Reversal of ltems relating to post employment benefits {116) - 116 -
debited or cradited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision ’

of Services in the Comprehensive incoma and Expenditure

Statement {see nole 15)

Employer's pensions confiibulions and diract paymants lo 147 - {147) »
pensloners payable in the year

Adjusimsnl Invoiving the Accumulating Compensated
Absences Adjustmenl Account

Amaount by which officer remuneration charged to the {2} - 2 -
Comprehensive incomea and Expenditure Stalement on an

accruals basis Is different frem remuneration chargeabie in

{he year in accordance with statutory requirements

[ —p—

Totat Adjustments 9,940 (2,681) (7,259) .
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201072041 {Restated)

General
Fund
Balance
E£00D

Capital Grants Movament in

Unapplied
Account
£000

Unusable
Raserves 2010111
£000 £000

Adjustments nvoiving the Capitai AdJustment Account:

Raversal of lems deblled or cradited to the Comprehensive
in a and Expendliyra Slatement:

Charges for dapreciation and impalrment of non curent
assels

{1442)

1,442 .

Movemants in the fair vaiue of investment Properties

15

%

(15)

Capilal grants and contribulions that have bean applied lo
capllal financing

3,715

{3.715)

Arnounls of non current asssts written off on disposal or sale
as parl of the gainfloss on disposal lo the Comprehensive
Income and Expendilure Statement

(66)

66 -

Adjustments involving the Capitai Recelpts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceads cradiled as part of tha gainfoss
on disposal lo the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statemant

Use of (he Capiiai Recelpls Reserve to finance new capllal
expenditure

)

Adjustmenl Involving the Capltat Grants Unappiled
Accounl

Reversal of unapplied caplial grants and contribulions
credited to the Comprehensive income and Expendilure
Siatement

1,035

(1,035)

Adjusiments invoiving the Pensions Reserva:

Reversal of itemns relating to post employment beneiits
debited ar cradited to the Surpius or Deficit on the Provislon
of Services in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Siatement (sea note 15)

298

(298)

Employers panslons confributions and direct payments to
pensicners payabie In the year

144

{144}

Adjustment invoiving the Accumuialing Compensated
Absences Adjustment Account

Amount by which efficer remuneration charged to the
Comprehsnsive Ingome and Expendilure Stalement on an
accnuals basls Is different fram remuneration chargeabls in
the year in accordance with slatulory requirements

(8)

Totat Adjustments

3,691

{1,035)

3

(2,658)
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B

COMPREHENSIVE iNCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2010744
(Restated) 201112
Sooo " . FO00
- Fees and Charges .
(68) (Gains)/ Losses on the dispossl of non cument assels 3
{68) Total _ ' {3)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME

AND EXPENDITURE
201011 2011412
Eooo . EoCo

- interest payabie and simiiar charges - -

63 Penslons interast cost and expectad relurn on pensions assels (49)
{13) Intersst raceivable and simiar income (28)
(15) Changes in the fair valua of investment properties (12)

(2) Income & Expanditure on invasiment properties {9)

26 Total (98)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT - NON SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME

201011
{Restated) 201112
£000 e £000
('1 ,2B2)  Non-ring fencad govemm"ent'granls “ .540)
{4,750) Capllal grants and contributions {11,350)
{6,032} Totai {12,890)

BALANCE SHEET - USABLE RESERVES

Movements In the Authorily’s usable reserves are detallad in the Movemnent in Reserves Statsment and note 4.

BALANGE SHEET - UNUSABLE RESERVES

31 March
2014 31 March
(Restated) 2012
£GO0 o - £000
711  Revalualion Reserve 2T
" 51,859 Capital Adjustment Account 58,788
(1,747)  Pensions Resarve B _ (2,072}
{18}  Accumuliating Compansated Absences Adjustment Account (12)
50,513  Totai Unusabie Raserves 57416
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Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserva contains the galns made by the Board arising from increasss in the value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment. The balance Is reduced when assets with accumuiated gains are:

s re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are iost
«  usad In the provision of services and the galns are consumed through depracialion, or
« dispesed of and the gains are reailsed

The Reserve containg only revaluation gaing accumulaled since 1 April 2007, the dale thal the Reserve was
crealed, Accumulaled gains arsing before that dale are consdidaled into the balance on the Capital Adjustment
Account,

201011 otaa
£000 N 11/ |
711 Balance al 1 Aprii o S —

- Upward revaluation of assets - -

- Downward revaluation of assets and impalment lossas - -
not charged lo the Surpius/Daficit on the Provision of
Services

- Surpius or deficlt on revaluation of non-current asssls - -
posled i the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

- Difference between fair valua depreciation and historical - -
cost dopreclation

- Accumulated galns on asssis sold or scrapped - -
- Amount written off to the Capilal Adjustment Account - -
711 Baiance at 31 March 711

Capital Adiusiment Account

The Capltal Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different amangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assels and for financing the acquieition, construclion or
enbancement of those assets under siatutery provisions. The Accounl is debiled with the cost of acquisition,
consiruction or enhancamenl as deprecialion and impairment losses are charged to the Comprehensive income
and Expendiure Statement. The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Board as finance for the
cosis of acquisllion, construction and enhancement. The Account conlains accumulaled geins and losses on
investment Properties that have yel to ba consumed by the Board. The Account also conlains revaiualion galns
accumulaled on Properly, Plant and Equipment before 1 Apri 2007, the date thal the Revaiuation Reserve was
created lo hoid such gains. Nole 4 provides detalis of the source of ali the fransactions posled to the Account,
apart from {hose involving e Ravalualion Reserve.
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201011

{Restatad) 2011412
__Eooo ) £000
49,338  Baiance at 1 April 51,559
Reversal of flems refaling fo capital expendliure debited or
cradited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
{1,442} » Charges for depreciation and impaimment of non current {1,453)
assels
-+ Revaluation losses on Properly, Plant and Equipment -
(T¢) « Amounis of non curent assets written off on disposaj or -
sale as part of the gainfioss on disposal to the
Comprehenslve income and Expenditure Statement
- Adjusting ameunts writfen out of the Revaluatlon Reserve - o
(1,512} Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets (1,453}
consumed in the year
Capllal financing applied In the year:
2 + Useof the Capital Receipts Reserve o finance new capitat 3
expendilure
3,715 < Capilai grants and contribulions cradited to the 8,668
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statemeant that
have been applied to capitai financing
= = Capital expendilure charged against the Gensral Fund -
3,717  Total Caplial Financing Appiied during the year 8,671
15 Movements in the markel vaiue of invesiment Properties 12
debited or credilad to the Cemprehansiva income and
Expenditure Slatement
51,559 Baiance at 31 March 58,789
Penslons Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arangements for accounting for
posl employment bensifits and for funding benefits in accordance with statulory provisions. The Board accounts for
posl empioymant benefils In the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement as the benefits are eamed by
employees accruing years of service, updating the ilabilities recognised lo reflect inflation, changing assumptions
and Invastment retums on any resources sel aside lo meel the costs. However, statulory arangements require
benefits eamed fo be financed as the Board makes empioyer's contributions to pensions funds or evenlually pays
any penslons for which il 1s diractly responsible. The debil balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shorifaii in the benefits eamed by past and current empioyees and the resources the Board has set
aside lo meet them. Tha stalulory arangements will ensure that funding will have been sel aside by the time the

benefits come 1o be pald.
2010/11 201tM2
£000 E0o0
(2,793) Balance at1 Apri (1,741
604 Aclarizi gains or (losses) on pensions assats and Habflilles {355)
208 Revarsal of items relaling lo retirament benefils debited or ¢radited to {116)
the Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
_ Comprehensive income and Expendilure Statement
144 Employers pensions contributions and direct payments fo 147
pansioners payabie in the year
(1,747} Balance at 31 March (2,072)

_— e —n ——— e [
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umuiatin

The Accumulating Compsnsated Absences Adjusiment Accounl absorbs the differences that wouid ctherwise arlse
on ihe General Reserve Balance from accruing for compensaled absences eamed bul not taken in the year.
Statutory arangements require that the impact on the General Reserve Balance is neufrallsed by iransfers to or

nsaled Absences nt Accoun

from the Account.
201011 2011112
£000 £000
(9 Balanceatq Aprli {10y
4  Setilament or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the 10 -
preceding year
(10)  Amounts accrued at the end of the cumenlyear {12 -
Amount by which officer remuneration charged lo the
(6) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement on an (2)
accruale basis is different from remuneralion chargeable i the
yaar in accordance with statutory reguirements
(10} Balance at 31 March {12)
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10. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

2010711
(Restaled) 201112
£000 — e300
3,840 Purchasa of properly, pianl and equipment, invesiment properdy 6,908

and intangible asseis

- Purchase of short-term and long-term Investments -

N Other payments for invesling aclivities -

{2) Proceeds from the sale of properly, plant and equipment, 3
Investment properly and intangibie assels

- Proceeds from shot-lanm and fong-lerm investments -

(4,750} Other recelpts from investing activities {11,350)

(812)  Net cash fiows from Investing activities (4,445)

11,  CASH FLOW STATEMENT - FINANCING ACTIVITIES

201011 201112
FOOC o £000

' = Cash recelpis of short and long-term berrowing ) -

{12)  Otherracelpis from finsncing activilles (13)

- Cash paymenls for the reduction of the oulslanding ilabllities -
relating to finance ieases and on-baiance sheel PFI contracls

- Repayments of short and iong-lerm borrowing .

- Other payments for financing activillas -

(12)  Netcash flows from financing activitles (13}

12. CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH AND CASH EQUNVALENTS
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivaients is made up of tha foliowing slements:

31 March 31 March
2011 2012
£000 , 3 ~ £000

- Cash held by the Board -
4,076  Bank cument account 8,155
4,076 Total cash and cash equivaients 8,155
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13 AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR RESCURCE ALLOCATION DECISIONS

Daclsions about resource allocation are iaken by the Board on the basis of budgel reporis anatysed across
operational divisions. These reports am prepared on a diffsrent basis from the accounting policies used in the
financiaf slatements. In particuiar:

« no charges are mada In relation to capilal expenditure (whereas depraciation and impairment iosses) are
charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Slatement)

» iha cost of retirement benefils is based on cash flows {payment of employer's pensions contribullons)
rather han current service cost of benefits accrued In the year

The income and expendilure of the Board’s operationai divisions recorded in {he budget reporis for the year is as

follows:
Plant & Bridge
Divisionai incoma and Expenditure Admin  Operations Equipment Maintenance Income Totai
2011/2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees, charges & other service income - - - - - -
interest and invasimantincome - - - - {a6) (38)
Govemnment grants - - - - (1.540} {1,540}
Total income - - - - {1,578) {1,578)
Employee expenses 180 481 - 397 - 1,058
Other service expensas 240 5 169 104 - 518
Total Expenditure 420 486 169 501 - 1,876
Net Expanditure 420 486 169 501 {1,576) -
Plant & Bridge

Divisionai income and Expendilure Admin  Operations Equipment Malntensnce income Total
201042011 Ec0Oo £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fees, charges & other service Income - - - - - -
interest and investment income - - - - (23) 23
Bovemment granis - - - - {1,282) (1,282)
Total income - - - - {1,305) {1,305}
Employee expsnses 177 468 - 406 - 1,051
Other service expanses 261 4 182 =t - 546
Totai Expenditure "~ am8_ 412 182 505 . 1,597
Nel Expenditure 438 472 182 508 {1,305} 282

Reconciiiation of Divisional income and Expendilure to Cosl of Services in the Comprehensiva income and
Expenditure Stalemant

This reconcliiation shows how the figures In the analysis of divisionai income and expenditure relate to the amounts
inciudad in the Comprshensive income and Expenditure Stalement.

2010011 201112
£000 EDDD

Nat expenditure in the Divisional Analysis 292 -
Neat expenditure of services not included In the Analysis - -
Amounts in the Comprehensiva income and Expenditure Slatement not

reported to management in the Analysis 2,392 3,196
Amounls included in the Analysis not inciuded in the Comprahensive income

and Expendilure Statement {144) {147}
Cost of Servicas in Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statament 2,540 3,048
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Rsconclilation fo Su ive Anai

~ Thig reconclifation shows how the figures in the analysls of divisional income and expendiiure relate to a subjective
analysls of the Surplus or Deficlt on the PFrovision of Services inciuded In the Comprehensive Incoma and

Expenditure Statement.

2014/2012

Faes, charges & other sarvice income
interest and Investmentincome
Govemmenl grants and contributions
Totai income

Empioyes expanses

Othar sarvica expensas
Depreciation, amorisation and
Impaimaent

intarest Payments
Galn or Loss on Disposat of Non-
Cument Assels

Total expendifure

Surplus or deficit on the provision
of sarvices

2010/2011 (Restaled)

Fees, charges & other service income
Interasl and Investment incomea
Govemment grants and conltributions
Totai Income

Empioyee expenhses

Cther sarvice expenses

Deprecialion,  amorisation  and
impaimanl

Interest Payments

Galn or Loss on Disposal of Non-
Curreni Assels

Total expenditure

Surpius or deficil on the provision
of services

Amounts  Amounis
not not
Operational  reporled  inciuded Cosl of Corporate

Divisions fo mgmt in CIES Services Amounts Totai

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(36} - - {36) (63) {89}
(1,540 - - {1,540) {11,350} {12,890}
{1,576} - - (1,576) (11,413} {12,989)
1,058 167 (147) 1,078 - 1,078
518 - - 518 - 818
- 1453 - 1,483 - 1,453
1,576 1,620 (147) 3,049 - 3,049
- 1,620 {147) 1,473 {11,413) (9,940)

Amounts Amounts
nol nol
Operaticnal raported  Included Costof Corporate

Divislons tomgmt  in CIES Services  Amounts Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(23) - - (23) 47 24
{1,282} - - (1,282) {4.750) {6,032)
(1,305) - - {1,305) (4,703} {6,008}
1,051 188 (144) 1,106 - 1,106
548 {554) - (8) - (8)
. 1,442 - 1442 - 1.442
- 70 - 70 - 70
1,597 1157 {144) 2,690 - 2,610
292 1,457 (134) 1,305 {4,703} {3,398)
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14.

15.

EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

The Board has incurred the following costs in reiallon to the audil of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
granl clalms and statutory Inspections and to other non-audil services provided by the Board's extemal auditors:

201011 2011M2

£000 £000
Fees payable lo Audlt Scotiand with regard to external audil services 13 12
camied out by the appointed auditor for the year
Fess payable in respect of olher services provided by ihe appointed - -
audilor during the year
Total 13 12

DEFINED BEMEFIT PENSION SCHEMES
Participation In pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of iis officers, tha Board makes contribulions towards the cost of
post empioyment banefits. Aithough these bansfils will not acluaily be payable until employeeés relire, the Board
has a commilment to make the paymants and this needs to ba disciosed al the time thal employees eam their
future entitiernant.

The Board participates in two post employment schemes:

+ The Local Govemment Pension Schema (Tayside Superannualion Fund), which is administered locaily by
Dundae Cly Councii and is a funded defined benefl final salary scheme, meaning that the Board and
empioyeas pay contributions into a fund, celculated at a fevei Intended 1o balance the pensions liabiliies with
invesiment assels.

« Arrangements for the award of discrelionary post relirement benefils upon early retirement — this ig an
unfunded defined benefil final arangement, under which Habliiies are recognlsed when awards are made.
Howaver, there are no invesimenl assels built up lto meet the penelons liabliitles, and cash has to be
generaled to mast actual pensions payments as they eventually fail due.

Transactions reiating to post employment benefits

The Board recognises the cost of relirement benefits in the repored cosl of sarvices when they are eamed by
employees, rather than when the benefils are evenlually paid as pansions. However, the charge the Board is
required to make against the cost of service is based on the cash payable In the year, so the real cost of post
empioyment/relirament benefils is revarsed oul of the General Reserve via tha Movemenl in Reserves Statemenl.
The foliowing transactions have been mada in the Comprehensive income and Expsndilure Statement and the
General Reserve Balanca via the Movamenl in Resarves Statement during the year:

Local Government
Pension Scheme
£000

2010/2041 20142012

Comprehensive income and Expenditure

Statement:

Cost of Sarvices:
« cumenl service cost 193 165
« past service costs (554) -

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
« intarast cost 423 357
« oxpecled relum on scheme assats (380) (406)
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tocai Government
Penslon Scheme
£000

201072011 2011/2012

Totai Posl Employment Benefit Gharged to the (298) 116
Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Qifier Post Employment Benefif Charged fo the
Comprehansive Income and Expendifure Stalerment

+ acluaral (gains) and losses {604} 355
Total Post Empicymenl Benefil Charged to the {902} 471
Comprehensive income and Expenditure
Statemant

Movemenl in Reserves Statement:

+ reversal of net charges made to the Suplus 298 (116}
or Deficit for the Provislon of Services for
post empioyment benefils in accordance with
{he Code

Acftual amount charged agalinst the General Fund
Balance for pensifons In the year:

«  amployars’ contribulions payabis lo schems 144 147

+ reflrement beneiits payabie to pensioners - -

Assets and llabliities in reiation to post employment benefits

Reconcillation of present vaiug of the scheme liablilties (definad benelit obligation):

Funded liabilities: Local Government
Pension Scheme

£000
2010/2011 201172012

Opening balance al 1 Apil 7,748 6,946
Current service cost 193 165
Interest cost 423 357
Conlr{butions by scheme 47 46
parficipants

Setllements and curtaliments - -
Actuarial gains and iosses {571) as9
Benefits pald (338) (240)
Pasl service cosls (554) -
Ciosing balance at 31 March 8,946 7,633
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Raconcliiation of falr value of the scheme assats:

Locai Government Pension Scheme

£000
2010/2011 2011i2012
Opening balanca at 1 Apri 4,953 5,198
Expected rate of retum 360 408
Actuarial gains and {iosses) 30 3
Selllements - -
Employer contributlons 147 147
Confribulicns by scheme participants 47 46
Bensfits paid {338} (240)
Closing baiance at 31 March 5,199 5,561

The expecied retum on scheme assels Is delermined by considering the expected retums avaflable on the assels
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interesl Investments are based on gross redermption
ylelds as al the Balance Sheel date. Expectad returns on eqully invesiments reflect iong-term real rates of relum
experianced In the respective markets.

The actual retumn on scheme assets In the year was £23,000 {2010/11: £389,000).

Scheme history:

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 201011 201112

£000 £000C E0GO £000 £000
Present valua of liabllities {5,540} {5,191} (7.746) {6,946} {7.633)
Fair value of assats In the Local 4219 3,750 4,953 5,199 5,561
Gavernment Pension Scheme _
Surpius/{deficit) In the scheme {1,327} {1,441) (2,793) (1,747) {2,072)

The Hablilles show the underlying commitments that {he Board has in the jong run to pay post employmant (relirement)
benefils. The tolal llabilily of £2.072m is reflectsd in the Board's Balance Sheel. Howaever, statulory amangemenls for
funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Board remalns heallhy. The deficit on the iocal govemmenl
scheme wili be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of empioyees {i.e., before paymenls
fail due), as assessed by the scheme actuary.

The totai contributions expacted to be made to the Local Govemment Pension Scheme by the Board in the year lo 31
March 2013 is £135,000.

Basis for estimating assets and l{abiitties
Liabiiities have baen assesssd on an acluariai basls using the projected unlt mathod, an eslimale of the pansions that will
be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about morality rates, salary levels, els, The Tayside

Superannuation Fund has been assessed by Bamett Waddingham, an independent firm of acluaries, being based on the
latast fuli vaiuation of tha scheme as at 31 March 2011.
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The princlpal assumptions used by the actuary have basn:

Local Govarnment
Penslon Schemsa
2010/ 1 204112

Loag-terrn expected rale of relum on assels In the schame:

Enulty invesiments 8.2% T.1%
Gilits 4.4% 3.3%
Bonds 5.5% 46%
Property 5.4% 4.3%
Cash 3.0% 3.0%

Mortallty assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensionars (years):
Men 214 208
Women 24.4 228

Longevity at &5 for future pensloners (years);

Men 223 21.8

Women 25.3 244
Rale of Infiation {RPI) 3.5% 3%
Rale of Infiailon (CPI) 2.7% 2.5%
Rate of increase In salaries 50% 4.8%
Rate of Increass In pensions 27% 2.5%
Rate for discounting scheme labilities 5.5% 4.6%
Take-up of oplion to convert annual pension Into relirement 50% 50%

{ump sum

The Tayside Superannualion Fund’s assels conslst of he following categories, by proportion of the total assels held:

31 March 2011 31 March 2012

% %
Equity invesiments 72 68
Gilts T a
Other Bonds 10 11
Property 9 11
Cash 2 2
Total 100 160
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History of exparience galns and josses

The actuarial galns identified as movemenis on the Pensions Reserve In 2011412 can be analysad into {he following
categories, measurad as a percentage of assets or liabliities at 31 March 2012:

16.

7.

2007/08  2008/09  2008/10 2010M1 20112

% Yo % % %
Differances belween the axpected and actual retum (12.2) {18.7) 21.2 05 0.1
on asseis
Expsarience gains and losses on lablilities 0.0 {1.1) 02 0.0 €9

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANGE SHEET DATE

Thare were no events thal occured between 1 April 2012 and 28 September 2012 thal would have an Impacl on
the 2011/2012 financial statements. The latier dale is the date on which the audited accounls were authorised for
Issus by the Treasurer.

RELATED PARTIES

The Board Is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - badles or individuals that have lhe
potential lo control or Influence the Board or o be controlled or influenced by the Board. Disclosura of these
transaciions allows readers 1o assess the extent to which the Board might have been constralned in Its ability to
operate Indepandently or might have secured the ability 1o limit ancther party’s abllity lo bargain freely with the
Board.

n M

Central govemment has effective control over the general operalions of the Board. Il Is responsible for providing
the stalutory framework within which the Board operales, provides the majosity of iis funding In the form of grants
and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Board has with other pariles. Grants received from
govemment departments are sel out In the subjective analysls in nole 13 on amounts reported lo declislon makers.
There are no grant recelpls outstanding at 31 March 2012 (sea nots 25).

Other Local Authorities
Angus, Dundee City and Fifa Gounclls are considered to be refaled parties of the Board. During 20112012, the
Board enlerad into 2 number of transactions with Dundee Cily and Fife Councils, as detailad below:

2010/2011 20412012
Income  Expenditure Income  Expenditure
£000 £060 £000 £000
Dundee Clty Councli:
(13} - interast Recelvabla (26} -
- 59 Central Supperl Services - 58
- - Miscellansous - kli]
~ 2 Grounds Mainlenance - -
{13} 61 Total {26} 88
Fife Councll:
- 10 Grounds Maintenance - -
- 10 TFotal - -
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8.

18.

The following balances existed between tha Board and Dundee City and Fife Counclls as at 31 March 2012;

2010/2011 2041/2012
Asset Liabliity Asset Liabllity
£000 £000 £000 £000

Bundee City Councli:

- 17 Central Support Services - 38
(13) - interest Receivable {26) -
- 24 Miscellansous {5486} 13
(13} 41 Total {572) 49
Fife Council:
- - Grounds Malntsnance - -
- - Total - -
L.EASES
The Board as Legsea

The Board held no assels on finance or operating lease during 2011/2012 and, accordingly, there were no lease
rantals pald to lessors during the year (2010/2011 None) or commilments dug lo lessors In 2011/2012 (2010/2011
Nons),

B Bo Q

The Board had entared a three year agreement for the lsase of land and property to a third party which ended In
2011, ¥his arangement has continued on a monthly basts as permitted in the lease agresment. This agreement
Is accounted for as an operating lease. In 2091/2012 the Board recelved rent of £10,213 from this agreement
(201072011 £10,213). The present value of minimum Jease payments recelvable as al the Balance Shesl date are
as follows:

a) Not later than 1 year = £10,213

b) later than 1 year and not [ater than 5 years = £Nli

¢} laler than 5 years = £NII,

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in lhe Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Slalement:

201011 201112
£000 £000
Rental income from investment property 10 10
Direct operating axpenses arsing from investment {1) m
property
Net galn/(loss) 9 9

There are no restrictions on the Board's abllty o realise the value inherent in ils investmenl property or on the
Board's righl fo tha remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal,
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20.

The following lable summarises the movement in the fair value of investmenl properties over the yean

201011 201112
£000 £000
Balanca at start of the year 58 73
Additions:
Purchases - -
Subsequent expendilure - -
Disposals - .
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjusiments 15 12
Transfers:
to/from Inventoras - -
toffrom Proparty, Plant and Equipment - -
Balance at end of the yaar 73 a5
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements on Balances
Movements in 2011122
Total
Other Land  Vehlicles, Property,
and Plant& Infrastructure Assets Under Plant &
Bulldings Equip Assets Construction  Equipment
£000 £000 £000 " £000 £000
Cost or Valuation o
At 1 Apil 2011 1,244 739 56,239 1,910 60,132
Additions - 14 6,107 - 6121
Additions ~ Ramp Work - - - 2,550 2,550
Daracognition — Disposals - - - - -
Derecognition - Olher - - (80) - (80)
Other movements in Cast or - - 3,991 (3.991) -
Valualion ) .
At 31 March 2012 1,244 753 66,257 _469 58,723(
" Accumulated Depreclation and -
impalrment
At 1 Aprl 2011 14 248 7,721 - 7,983 7
Dapreciation charge 14 50 1,308 - 1,372
Derecognilion - Disposals - - - “ -
At 31 March 2012 _ 28 208 9,029 - 9,355
Net Book Value w T T
At 31 March 2012 1,216 485 57,228 " 489 59,368
At 31 March 2011 1,230 492 48,518 1,910 52,150 )
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Comparative Movernents in 2010/11 (Restated);

Total
Other Land  Vehlcles, Property,
and Plant & infrastructure  Assats Under Plant &
‘Bulldings  Equlpment Assets Construction  Equlpment
" E000 £000 go00 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2010 1,244 618 54,849 - 56,711
Additions - 157 1,660 - 1,807
Addtiions - Ramp Work - - - 1910 1,910
Derecagnilion — Blsposals - (36) {1500 - {186)
Derecognition - Other - - {110) - {110)
QOthar movemsnis in Costor - - - - -
“Valuation
At 31 March 2011 1,244 739 56,239 1,810 60,132
Accumulated Dapreclation
and impalrment
Al 1 April 2010 - 241 6,525 - 8,766
Depraclation charge 14 43 1,276 - 1,333
Deracognifion — Disposals - {36) {80} - {116}
At 31 March 2011 14 248 7,721 - 7,983
Net Book Valua
At 31 March 2011 1,230 492 48,518 1,910 52,150
At 31 March 2010 1,244 aze 48,324 - 49,944
Capital Commilments

At 31 March 2012, the Board has entered into @ number of conltracts for the conslruction or enhancement of
Property, Planl and Equipment in 2012/13 and future years, budgeted lo cosl £12,058,000, (Similar commitments
at 31 March 2011 wore £464,000). The major commitment is for:

»  Pier Collision Protection Works ~ £12,008,000

Ravalualions

The Authority canies out a roliing programme that ensures that all Propany, Planl and Equipment required to be
measured al fair value Is revalued at leasl every five yoars. All valuaiions were camied out by Mr Douglas
Davidson BSc MRICS, from Dundee City Councits Clty Development Department. Valuations of land and
bulldings were camied out in accordance with (he methedologies and bases for estmation sel out in the
professional standards of the Royal Insltution of Chartered Surveyors.



21. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING
The total amount of capilal expenditure Incurred in the year Is shown In the table below, togsther with the resources
that have been used to finance it,
203041 201112
£000 £000
Capr'té!' investment;
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,807 6,122
Invesiment Properties - -
Total Capitat Investmant 1,807 8,122
Sources of finance:
Capital mcelpts 2 3
Govemment granis and other contribulions 1,805 6,119
Caplta! Financed from Ravenue - -
Total Sources of Finance 1,807 6,122
22,  INVENTORIES
Consumable Malntenance Cllant Services Property Total
Stores Materlals Work in Progress Acquired or
Constructed
for Sale
10/11 11412 10111 1112 1011 1112 1041 11M42  40M1 1in2
£000 E0QG E£000 £000 £000 £000 EQOD E000 EOODO £000
Balance outstanding - - 52 47 - - - - 52 47
at start of year
Purchases - - - - - - - - - -
Recognisad as an
axpense in the year - - 2 1) - - - - (2) (1)
Whritlen off balances - - - - - - - - - -
Reversals of write-offs - - - . - - - - - -
in previous years
Other Adjustments - - {3) 1 - - - - {3} 1
Balance outstanding - - 47 47 - . . - a7 47
at year-and
23. SHORT-TERM DEBTORS

3% March 2011

31 March 2012

£000 £000
Central govemmant bodles - -
Local authorilies ) 12 572
NHS bodies - - ;
Public carporalions and”tr‘a‘&t“ng funds ) A
Ofherentiles andindividuals s 89
Total T e 20 581

e U B B § VAT e e ~ et = 7w moikn Ak Lammandn e e
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24,

25.

26.

SHORT-TERM CREDITORS

31 March 2011 31 March 2012

£000 £000
Caniral govemment bodles - 161
Locat authorilies 41 127
NHS bodles - -
Publlc corporations and trading funds 9 -
Other enlilies and individuals 358 2,079
Total 408 2,367
GRANT INCOME

The Board credited the following granis, cortributions and donations o the Comprehenslve Income and
Expenditura Account In 2011/12;

2010011
(Restated) 201112
£000 £000

Cradited to Taxatlon and Non Specific Grant Income

Scottish Govemment Revenue Granl 1,282 1,540
Scoltish Govemmaent Capital Grant 2,840 8,800
Dundee City Councll Capltal Grant 1,910 2,550
Total 6,032 12,8590

The Board has £160,000 of Revenue granis, coniributions and donations that have yet to be recognised as income
due to tham having condltions attached lo them thal requires the monies or propery lo be relumed to the grant
provider (2010/2611 Nona).

PRIOR PERIOD ABJUSTMENT

Rastatement required at the beginning of the earllest prlor perlod presented

There was no change to net assets or {he brought forward reserves’ balances as al 1 April 2010,

Reconclilation of adjustment to Balance Sheet at 31 March 2011

Adjusiment 2:
Adjustment 1:  Deracognising  Restated
Original Recognising  NetBook Vaiue  Balance

Balance Sheet  Asset Under of Replaced  Shest as at
agat3! March Consltucionat  Assetat 31 31 March

2011 31 March 2011 March 2011 2011
By £000 £000 £000 000
Property, Plant & Equipment 50,310 1910 () 52,150
Tolal Long Term Assais 50,383 1810 (70) 52,223
Net Assets 52373 1910 (79) 54,213
h‘g;;fﬁgf;‘:::&cap"a' 48,673 1,910 (70) 50,513
Total Reserves 52373 1910 o) 54,213
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Imen{ 1: Recognlsin dar Co n at 31 March 2011;

The board Is raquired lo recognise all assets under construction at the balance sheet date and all corresponding
grant Income when it Is recelved. The conbract to complste the westem off-ramp was in progress at 31 March 2011
and as such the portion of the contract thal was complele at thal date (£1.91m} Is requlred to ba recognised as an
assel under construction within property, plant and equipment. The matching grant for this expenditure Is also
required to be recognised.

Adiustmeant 2: De izlng Nel B Vall Rapla et

The board Is required to derecognise the nat book value of any assats that have been repiaced In order to avold
double-counting. The original westem off-ramp had been demolished at 31 March 2011, therefore the carying
amount has lo be derscognised at thal dale. In the absence of accurate data for the canying value of the ramp, the
otal cosl of the new assel was used as a proxy figure and an Indexation calculation was applied to caiculate the
original cost of the ramp and the assoclated accumulated depreciation In order to establish the camrying amount lo
be derecognised.

Amount as at 31
March 2011
£000
Estimalad ofiginal cost 150
Estimaled accumulated depreciation (a0}
Estimatad Net Book Value 70

Recenclllation of adjustmant to Comprshenslve Income and Expenditure Statement 2010/20114:

Income and Expenditure

Adjusiment 2;
Qriginal Adjustment 1:  Derecognlsing Restated
201012011 Recognising  NetBook Value  2010/2011
CIES: Nat Asset Under of Replaced CIES: Net
Expenditure/ Construclionat  Asselat 31 ExpendIlture /
Income 31 March 2011 March 2011 Income
£000 2000  £00D £000
Other Oparaling Income & {2) - 70 Ga
Expandilure
Non-Specific Grant Income {4,122) (1,910) 7 - (6,032)
(Surplus) or Deficlt on
Provision of Services (1,558) (1,810} 70 . (3'39_8) _
Total Comprehensive (2,462) (4,910) 70 4,002)
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Reconclllation of Adjustment to Movement in Heserves Statemant 2010/2011:

Qriginal

Adjustment 2: Restated

Adjustment 1: Demscognlsing  2010/2011
Recocognising MNet Book Value MRS

Asset Under of Aeplaced General

2010/2011 MRS:
General Fund  Consiructionat  Assel al 31 Fund
Balance 31 March 2011 March 2011 Balance
£000 £000 2000 £000
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding 1,851 1,910 (70) 3,691
basls under regulations
Adjustment 2;
Adjustment 4: Derecognising  Roslated
Qriglnal Aecocognising Net Book Value  2010/2011
2010/2011 MRS:  Assaet Under of Replaced MHS:
Unugable Conslructionat  Asselat 31 Unusable
Reserves 31 March 2011 March 2011 Reserves
£000 2000 £000 £000
Adjustmenis between
accounting besis & funding (816) (1,810} 70 (2,658)
basis under regulations
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

independent auditor’s report to the members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts
Commission for Scotiand

We have audited the financlal statements of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board for the year endsd 31 March 2012 on
pages 15 lo 48. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thelr preparalion is applicable law and
internationai Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the Europsan Union, and as inlerpreled and
adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdor 2011-12 {the 2011-12 Code).

This report is made solely to the members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commisslon for
Scotland, In accordance with Part VIl of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1873. OQur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might stale lo those two parties those matters we are required to state to themin an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extant permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiiity to
anyone other than the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Coramigsion for Scolland, for this report, of

the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibllities of the Treasurer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities on page 14, tha Treasurer Is responsibla for the
preparation of financial statements which give a lrue and fair view. Our responsibifity Is to audlt, and express an
apinion on, the financial statements In accordance with applicable law and Inlernational Standards on Audiling (UK
and Ireland) as required by the Code of Audil Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practicas Board's Ethical Standards for Audilors.

Scope of the audit of the flnanclal statements

An audit involves oblaining avidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial stalements are free from malerial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
arrar. This Includes an assessment of: whather the accounting policies are appropriate to the body's circumstances
and have been consisiently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
esllmates made by the Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financlal statements. in additfon, we read all
the financial and non- flnancial Information in the statement of accounls lo Identify matetial misstaternents or
inconsistencles wilh the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent malerial misslalemants
or inconsislenclies wa consider the impllcations for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our apinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the staie of the affairs of the body as at 31 March 2012 and of its expentiiiure
and income for tha year then ended;

» have bean properly prepared In accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounling in the
United Kingdom 2011-12

+ have been prepared in accordance with the sequiremants of the Local Government {Scotland) acl 1973 and
the Local Government Scofiand Act 2003,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973
In our opinion:

» the part of the Remuneration Report to be audiled has been properly preparad in accordance with the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Reguiations 1985; and

« the information given in the Treasurer's Report for the financial year for which the financial staternents are
prepared is consislent wilh the financial slalements.
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Indepandent auditor’'s report 1o the membera of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board and the Accounts Commission
for Scotland (continuad)

Matters on which we are requived to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters whera the Local Govermnment {Scotland) Act 1973
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not besn kepl; or

s the financial stalements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting records; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we raquira for our audit; or

s« the Annual Govemance Slatement does not comply with Delivering Good Govemance in Local
Govarnmaent; or

+ thers has been a failure to meet a prescribed financial objective.

S e

il hnatig
S Reid

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Charterad Accountanis

Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace

Edinburgh

EH1 2EG

28 Saptember 2012
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About this report
This report has been prepared in accordance with the responsi

ies set out within the Audit Scotland's Code of Audit Practice (Pthe Cods”).

This report is for the benefit of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board (“the Joint Board") and is made available to Audit Scotland and the Accounts Comemission for Seotland (fogether "the
beneficiaries”). It has been released fo the beneficiaries on the basis that wider disclosure is permitted for information purposes, but that we have not taken account of the wider
requirements or circumstances of anycne other than the beneficiaries.

Nething in this report constitutes an apinion on a vatuation or legal advice,

We have nol verified the reliability or accuracy of any information obtained in the course of cur wark, other than in the limiled circumstances sel out in the scope and objectives seclion of this
repor.

This report is not suitable to be relied on by any party wishing o acquire rights against KPMG LLP (other than the keneficiaries) for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
beneficiaries that obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on this report (or any part of it} does so at ifs own risk, To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP does
not assume any responsibility and will not accept any liability in respect of this report to any party other than the beneficiaries.

We also draw your atlenfion to the following:
»  The Treasurer of Tay Road Bridge Jolnt Board is responsible for prepating financial statements that show a true and fair view and for implemeniing appropriate internal control systems;
= weaknesses or risks identified by us are only those which have come to our attention during our normal audit wark in accerdance with the Code, and may not be all that exist; and

= communication by us of matters arising from the audit of the financial statements or of risks or weaknesses does not absolve Tay Road Bridge Joint Board management from ils
responsibility to address the issues raised and to maintain an adequate system of canfrol, :

© 2042 KPMG LLP, 3 UK Limited Liabllity Parinesship, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member fikn of the KPMG natwork of independant membar firms affillated with 1
KPMG Intemational Ceoperativa {{KPMG Intemalional’), & Swiss entity. All fights reserved. Uise of this report is RESTRICTED = see Notice on ontanls page.



Executive summary
Headlines

al statern .
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2011-12 (“the Code”} did not include any major Pages 3- 4
amendments which impacted on the preparation of the financial statements of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board ("the Joint Board").
All accounting policies have been applied consistently.
We have issued an ungualified opinion on the financial statements for 2011-12.

Management agreed that there was an error in the 2010-11 financial statements; a prier year adjustment has been processed in
the 2014-12 financial statements to correct the error,

The net cost of services for 2011-12 represented a £93,000 underspend against budget, primarily arising from a saving in staff Page 5
costs, property costs and supplies and services costs during the year. As the Joint Board Is funded to mest expenditure
incurred, non-specific grant income recagnised in year was reduced in line with the underspend incurred. The general fund
balance was unchanged at £1.16 million.

The Joint Board's net assets have increased by £8.6 million. This is primarily as a result of the £8.6 million investment in
infrastructure assets during the year,

Over-arching and supporting corporate governance arrangements provide a sound framewark for organisational decision- Page 6-8
making. A lacal code of corporate governance has been approved, A self-assessment of the effectiveness of corporate
governance arrangements was undertaken during 2011-12, and identified a high level of compliance.

Internal audit reparted that the Joint Board had adequate and effecfive infernal control systems. Appropriate arrangements are
established in respect of standards of conduct and prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity.

The Joint Board monitors its performance against key performance indicators, and reports this performance within its financial
statements.

We are required by ethical standards to formally confirm our independence yau. Appendices
R o . . . . one and
We draw your attention to the responsibilities of the Jeint Board under Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice. two
© 2012 KPMG LLP, a UK Limited Liablity Partnership, Is a subsidlary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG nebwork of independent member firms affiliated with 2

KPMG Intomalional Cooperalive {'KPMG International), a Swiss entily. All rights reserved. Use of this report is RESTRICTED ~ see Nelice on conlents page,



| Financial statements
Accounting policies; audit opinion

| The 2011-12 Code has a number of amendments from the 2010-11 version and management considered the reporting
requirements for the financial statements. The amendments included:

& applicability of FRS 30 Herifage Assels (as above);
& additional guidance in respect of leases;
m additional disclosure requirements in respect of exit packages; and

= arequirement for a specific statement in the annual governance statement / statement on the system of internal
financial control on whether financial management arrangements conform with the governance requirements of the
statement on "the role of the chief financial officer in local government.”

The Joint Board has referred appropriately to the role of the chief financial officer within its annual governance statement.
None of the other matters above had any impact on the Joint Board in the year.

There have been no changes io the accounting policies in 2011-12, and these remain appropriate for the activities and
transactions of the Joint Board.

As part of our audit enquiries in 2011-12, Council management advised that the new slip road / ramp construction was
being grant funded by the Council. We enguired as to whether the Council was accounting for an asset under construction
within its financial statements — which would be donated to the Joint Board on completion - or whether the fransaction was
being treated as expenditure of the Council and grant income to the Joint Board. Management of the Council confirmed
that the treatment adopted was to provide grant income to the Joint Board, since no asset under construction was being
recorded within the Council's financial statements,

In 2011-12, the Board accounted for the receipt of £3.99 million of grant income from the Council in respect of the Joint
Board's share of the costs associated with the new slip road / ramp construction. Our analysis of the associated
expenditure identified that £1.9 million was incurred by the Counci! during 2010-11 and expensed through the
comprehensive income and expenditure statement. Management has concluded that it would have been corract to record
the receipt of the £1.9 million of grant income towards the asset under construction within the Joint Board's 2010-11
financial statements,

Through restatement of the comparative information, a prior year adjustment has been processed in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2012, to recognise the inclusion of the additional grant income, and associated
asset under construction, in 2010-11

€ 2012 KPMG LLP, a UK Limited Liability Parinesship, Is a subsidiary of KFMG Europe LLP and a member firm af the KPMG nebwerk of Independent member firms alfitiated with
KPM®G Jntemations} Cooperalive {'KPMG Internaticnal’}, a Swiss enfity. All ights feserved. Use of this report Is RESTRICTED — see Nolice on contenls page.



' Financial statements
Preparation of financial statements

T

The Local Government (Scotland} Act 1973 requires us fo provide an opinion on the Joint Board's financial statements on

completion of our audit. Our opinion, which is unqualified, states that the financial statementis:

m give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Joint Board as at 31 March 2012 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended;

m have been properly prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2011-12; and

®w have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government {(Scotland) Act 1973 and the Local
Government Scotland Act 2003,

The unaudited financial statements were authorised for issue by the Treasurer of the Joint Board on 8 June 2012, and
passed to us for audit on 25 June 2012 along with a completed disclosure checklist. This was in advance of statutory
requirements and the agreed audit timetable.

Good quality supporting documentation was made available in electronic format to support the unaudited financial
statements.

Aside from the prior year adjustment discussed above, there were no material adjustments required to the financial
statements.

We are required under International Standard on Auditing 260 *Communication with those charged with governance’ to
report any unadjusted errors identified during the course of our audit. There are no unadjusted audit differences to report.

i,

© 2012 KPMG LLP, a UK Limlted Liability Partnership, Is a subsidiary of KPMG Eurcpe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG natwork of indepandant member firms affifiated with
KPMG Intemational Copperalive ('KPMG Intemmational’}, 8 Swiss entily. All rights raserved, Use ot this reparl Is RESTRICTED ~ sea Nolice on contenls page.



Use of resources
Financial position

Financial position

For the year ended 31 March 2012 the Jeint Beard reported a net cost
of services of £3 million. This outturn represented a £93,000
underspend on the budget approved for 2011-12 by the Joint Board.
Funding is received principally through the Scottish Government for
revenue and capital purposes. Due to the ongoing Dundee Waterfront
redevelopment project, capital funding Is also receivable from Dundee
City Gouncil.

Total grant income of £12.8 million was received, and applied fo meet
revenue expenditure of £1.54 million, £8.6 million investment in
infrastructure assets, with the balance held in the capital grants
unapplied account.

Unapplied non-specific revenue grant income received of £161,000 is
held in creditors, as the Joint Board does not have the ability to
increase its reserves through recognition of this income in advance of
incurring the expenditure,

Net cost of service

Other operating income (3}
Finance and investment income and expenditure {96)
Nen-specific grant income (being £1.54 million non-ring {12,840}
fenced government grants, and £11.35 million capital

grants and contributions)

{Surplus) on provision of services (9,940}
Other comprehensive income and expenditure (being 355
actuarial losses on pension scheme}

Total comprehensive {income} and expenditure (3,585)

After adjustments to reflect the different accounting basis and funding
basis, the outturn for the year was £nil resulting in no change to the
general fund balance.

Reserves

The Joint Board holds an unchanged general fund balance at the year
end of £1.16 milion. The Joint Board had previously identified
£800,000 as a prudent level of reserves to be held. The current
excess in funds over this level is due to the results of efficiency
measures fo reduce overall running costs. This is within the limits set
out within The Tay Road Bridge Conformation Act 1991, Part V 39(3).

The Joint Board has total net assets as at 31 March 2012 of £63.8
miilion (20710-11: £54.2 million), represented primarily by property,
plant and equipment of £69.4 million. The increase in net assets
represents the investment in the infrastructure assets during 2011-12.

©2012 KPMG LLP, a UK Limiled Liabllity Partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent rmember firms affiliated with
KPMG Entemational Cooperative ('KPMG Intemational’), a Swiss entity. A# rights reserved. Use of this reporl Is RESTRICTED -- see Nolice on contents page,



Governance
Corporate governance framework and supporting arrangements

Corporate governance is concerned with structures and processes for decision-making, accountability, control and
behaviour. The three fundamental principles of corporate governance ~ openness, integrity and accountability — apply to
all bodies.

The responsibilities of the Joint Board and its Treasurer for establishing arrangements for ensuring the proper conduct of
its affairs, including compliance with relevant guidance, the legality of aciivities and transactions, and for monitoring the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements are outlined in the Statement of Responsibilities in the financial
statements.

The Joint Board has approved a local code of corporate governance, drawing on all aspects of its governance
arrangements, to consolidate these into a framework which is in line with the principles of the CIPFA / SOLACE
publication “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government.”  Internal audit undertock a review of the Joint Board's
cofporate governance arrangements as part of their 2011-12 programme of work, and concluded that the arrangements in
place were good. Some areas for continuous improvement were identified as a result of this work, and these are
disclosed in the annual governance statement.

The revenue and capital budgets for the year are approved by the Joint Board, who also receive regular monitoring reports
to allow them to exercise and demonstrate stewardship and accountability for the use of their resources.

The Joint Board has prepared an annual governance compliance staterment for the first time during 2041-12, The
statement discloses that, in line with best practice, the Joint Board undertook a self-assessment review of the
effectiveness of its arrangements during the year, using a 56-point checklist completed by the Bridge manager, The self-
assessment indicated a high-level of compliance. This exercise demonstrates the Joint Board's commitment to
continuous improvement.

We have reviewed the annual governance statement and can confirm it is consistent with our understanding of the Joint
Board's activities.

© 7012 KPMG LLP, 8 UK Limiled Liability Parinership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member fim of the KPMG netwerk of independent member firms affiliated with
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Governance
Corporate governance framework and supporting arrangements

The Joint Board has an outsourced internal audit provider. The Joint Board received its annual report from its internal
auditor at its meeting in June 2012, before approval of the unaudited financial statements. This addressed the
implementation of a recommendation made by the previous external auditors, as part of their 2010-11 annual audit report

The internal audit annual report concluded that "the Board operales adequate and effective internal conirol systems as
defined in the audit needs assessment, with proper arrangements in place to promote and secure value for money.”

In undertaking their work for the year, while no significant issues were identified, internal audit noted that while assurance
was obtained in respect of IT network arrangements, there were a number of areas identified for further improvement to
ensure that controls were operating in line with industry recommended best practice.

The members of the Joint Board are drawn from the constituent councils, and as such are bound by the respective codes
of conduct of those councils. The Joint Board adopts the national code of conduct for Jocal authority employees. This s
made available on the website fo ensure that all Joint Board employees are aware of their responsibilities.

We undertook appropriate systems audit work as part of our 2011-12 audit of Dundee City Council, with any findings
reported to Council management. This included controls fo prevent and detect fraud and irregularity. No audit findings
relating uniquely to the Joint Board were identified during the audit work carried out at the Council.

In accordance with Internationzal Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), management is required to provide us with
representations on specific matters such as your financial standing, application of accounting policies, and whether the
transactions in the financial statements are legal and unaffected by fraud.

In respect of the restatement made to correct a material misstatement in the prior period financial statements as a result of
an amount of grant income of £1.21 million not accounted for in 2010-11, we will be asking for specific representation that
the Joint Board confirms that the restatement is appropriate.

92012 KPMG LLP, a UK Limited Liabiity Parnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europs LLP and a member fim of ihe KPMG nebwork of independent member firms affilialed with
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Appendix one
Auditor’s Independence

Professional ethical standards require us to provide to you at the conclusion of the audit a written disclosure of relationships, (including the
provision of non-audit services) that bear on KPMG LLP’s objectivity and independence, the threats to KPMG LLP's independence that these
create, any safeguards that have been put in place and why they address such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable
KPMG LLP's objectivity and independence to be assessed. This statement is intended to comply with this requirement and facilitate a
subsequent discussion with you on audit independence.

We have considered the fees paid to us by the Joint Board for professional services provided by us during the reporting period. There were no
fees payable other than in respect of our audit.

We are satisfied that our general procedures suppott our independence and objectivity.

General procedures fo safeguard independence and objectivity

KPMG LLP is committed to being and being seen to be independent. As part of our ethics and independence policies, all KPMG LLP partners
and staff annually confirm their compliance with our ethics and independence policies and procedures including in particular that they have no
prohibited shareholdings. Our ethics and independence policies and procedures are fully consistent with the requirements of the Ethical
Standards issued by the UK Auditing Practices Board. As a result we have underlying safeguards in place to maintain independence through:

a instilling professional values;
@ communications;

u internal accountability;

a risk management;

@ independent reviews.

Please inform us If you would fike to discuss any of these aspects of our procedures in more detail. There are no other matters that, in our
professional judgement, bear on our independence which need to be disclosed to the Joint Board.

Confirmation of audit independence
We confirm that as of 21 September 2012, in our professional judgment, KFMG LLP is independent within the meaning of regulatory and
professional requirements and the objectivity of Stephen Reid and audit staff is not impaired.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Joint Board and should not be used for any other purposes.

Yours faithfully
KPMG LLP

© 2012 KPMG LLP, 8 UK Limited ¢ lability Partnarship, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member fims affiliated with
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Appendix two

Audit Scotland code of audit practice — responsibilities of the Joint Board

Financial statements

Audited bodies' financial statements are an essential part of accounting for
their stewardship of the resources made available to them and heir
performance in the use of those resources. Audited bodies are responsible for:

e ensuring the regularity of fransactions, by putfing in place systems of
internal confrol to ensure that they are in accordance with the appropriate
authority;

w maintaining proper accounting records;

w preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of their
financial position and their expenditure and income, in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framewoark (eg, the Financial Reporting Manual
or an Accounting Code of Practice);

m preparing and publishing with their financial statements an annual
governance statement, statement on internal control or statement on
internal financial contral and a remuneration report; and

w preparing consolidation packs and, in larger bodies, preparing a Whole of
Government Accounts return.

Systems of internal control

Audiled bodies are responsible for developing and implementing systems of
internal control, including risk management, financial, operational and
compliance controls. They are required to conduct annual reviews of the
effectiveness of their governance, systems of intetnal control, or internal
financial control, and report publicly that they have done so. Such reviews
should take account of the work of internal audit and be carried out by those
charged with governance, usually through bodies” audit committees.

Prevention and detection of fraud and irregularities
Audited bodies are responsible for establishing arrangements to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularity. This includes:

m developing, promoting and monitoring compliance with standing orders and
financial instructions;

m developing and implementing strategies to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularity;

m receiving and investigating alleged breaches of proper standards of
financial conduct or fraud and Irregularity; and

a participating, when required, in data matching exercises carried out by
Audit Scotland.

Standards of conduct and arrangements for the prevention and detection
of bribery and corruption

Audited bodies are responsible for ensuring that their affairs are managed in
accordance with proper standards of conduct and should put proper
arrangements in place for:

# implementing and manitoring compliance with appropriate guidance on
standards of conduct and codes of conduct for members and officers;

m promoting appropriate values and standards; and

w developing, promoting and monitoring compliance with standing orders and
financial instructions.

Financial position

Audited bodies are responsible for conducting their affairs and for putting in
place proper arrangements o ensure that their financial position is soundly
based having regard to:

@ such financial manitoring and reporting arrangements as may be specified;

m compliance with any statufory financial requirements and achievement of
financial targets;

w balances and reserves, including strategies about levels and future use;
and

w the impact of planned future policies and foreseeable developments on
their financial position.

Best Value

Achievement of Best Value or value for money depends on the existence of
solind management arrangements for services, including procedures for
planning, appraisal, authorisation and control, accountability and evaluation of
the use of resources. Audited bodies are responsible for ensuring that these
matlers are given due priofity and resources, and that proper procedures are
established and operate satisfactorily.
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REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD - 10 DECEMBER 2012

REPORT ON: RESPONSE TO EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
2011/2012 AUDIT OF TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD
REPORT BY: TREASURER
REPORT NO: TRB 29-2012 o
mEMNo. _ SC<) .
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

4.1

4.2

43

This report is a response to the report prepared by the Board's External Auditor on the
audit of Tay Road Bridge Joint Board for the year ended 31 March 2012. A copy of the
External Auditor's report and the Board's Audited Statement of Accounts are included on
the agenda as separate items.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board:

i endorse this report as the formal response to the External Auditor's report;

i notes that the External Auditor's findings and conclusions are favourable;

iii instructs the Treasurer to monitor the implementation of the agreed action plan
appended to this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None

MAIN TEXT

Introduction

The external audit of the Board for the financial year 2011/2012 was carried out by Mr
Stephen Reid, Engagement Director, KPMG. The Joint Board's External Auditors are
appointed for a five year period and the financial year 2011/2012 marked the first year of

KPMG's current appointment to the Board.

External Auditors Report

The External Auditor's report outlines his main responsibilities as auditor and describes
the scope of audit work undertaken during 2011/2012 and the issues arising from that
work. The report is divided into the following areas:

- Executive Summary

- Financial Statements

- Financial Position

- Corporate Governance

in addition to the Members of the Board, the External Auditor's Report is also addressed
to the Controller of Audit at the Accounts Commission for Scotland. Given this wider
audience, and the extent of the External Auditor's responsibilities and scope of work, his
report is by necessity both fulsome and extensive. A copy of his report is included on
the agenda as a separate item. Accordingly, it is not the intention of this report to
provide a detailed response or commentary on all the External Auditor's findings.

TRE 28.2012-EA.REP-101212
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4.4

Conclusions

During 2011/2012, the External Auditor examined a number of areas covering a wide
range of the Board's activities. Whilst a prior year adjustment was required and some
areas for improvement have been identified, it is pleasing to note that the auditor's
overall findings and conclusions are satisfactory. In particular the Board can take
encouragement from the following findings:

the accounts were submitted on time;

there was no qualification to the auditor's opinion;

final accounts preparation procedures and working papers were good;

assurance can be placed on the financial systems and internal financial controls used by

the Board,;

many aspects of a sound corporate governance framework are in place, inciuding an
Annual Governance Statement; and

there are appropriate arrangements in place in respect of standards of conduct and
prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environment Assessment, Anti-Poverty and Equality Impact Assessment and
Risk Management. There are no major issues identified.

CONSULTATIONS

The Bridge Manager and Clerk to the Board have been consulted on the content of this
report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

KPMG: Tay Road Bridge Joint Board - Annual Report to Members on the 2011/2012
Audit (December 2012).

MARJORY M STEWART
TREASURER 13 NOVEMBER 2012

TRB 26-2012-EA.REP 101212



REPORT TO: TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD — 10" December 2012

REPORT ON: REPORT ON ANNUAL REVIEW OF BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN

REPORT BY: THE BRIDGE MANAGER

REPORT NO:  TRB31-2012 [ TEMNo,

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To appraise the Joint Board of the annual review of the Business Continuity Plan and report on any
Business Continuity Incidents.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
The Board are asked to note the contents of this Report as at 30 November 2012.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications as a result of this report.

4 POLICY IMPLICATIONS

4.1 None.

5. OUTCOME OF REVIEW

51  The Board’s Business Continuity Plan was approved in September 2010. Business Continuity is
invoked if there is an incident that can lead to the disruption of any major aspect of the normal
service provided by the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board for more than 24 hours.
As part of the ongoing management of the plan it was agreed that the Business Continuity Plan
would be reviewed annually and updated to take account of new or changed circumstances faced
by the Board.
This review was carried out in November 2012 in conjunction with the Insurance and Risk Manager
from Dundee City Council and it can be reported there are no changes to the Incident Management
processes and procedure and no changes have been made to the Plan. A copy of the Business
Continuity plan is attached as Appendix A.

6 BUSINESS CONTINUITY INCIDENTS

6.1 No incidents requiring the invocation of the Board’'s Business Continuity plan occurredduring the
past 12 months.

7 CONSULTATIONS

7.1 The Treasurer, Clerk and Engineer to the Board have been consuited in the preparation of this
report.

8 BACKGROUND PAPERS

8.1 None



IAIN MACKINNON
BRIDGE MANAGER
30 November 2011



Appendix A Business Continuity Plan
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Introduction & Objectives

Business Continuity describes the processes and procedures an organisation puts in place
to ensure that essential functions can continue during and after a disaster. Business
Continuity Planning seeks to prevent interruption of critical services, and to re-establish full

functionality as swiftly and smoothly as possible.

By producing this Business Continuity Plan (BCP) the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board is
complying with its obligations under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004) and demonstrating its
readiness to deal with any situation which could result in an interruption of its core function,
namely the operation and maintenance of the Tay Road Bridge in such a manner as to

maximise availability to the travelling public.

The Objective of this plan is to set out in clear and unambiguous steps the processes and
procedures the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board will implement in the event of a scenario which

invokes a Business Continuity situation.



Incident Definitions

The main scenarios identified as likely to result in Business Continuity being invoked are as
follows:-

2.1

22

2.3

2.4

2.5

Loss of Administration Building and garages

Unavailability of the Administration Building and garages can occur through
environmental incidents such as fire, water damage, explosion etc

Staff Unavailability
Staff may be unavailable for a number of reasons including:-

Significant loss of life e.g. through fire, explosion, gantry collapse, vehicular accident
etc

Widespread iliness e.g. influenza pandemic

Adverse weather conditions

Mass resignation/industrial action

Failure of IT/ICCTV systems efc

The following systems may be unavailable for the following reasons
Local Area Network — hardware/software failures/virus attack

PC Workstations — hardware/software failures/virus attack

CCTV — hardware failure of cameras/recording equipment/monitors
software failure of recording system

Weather Monitoring Equipment — hardware failure of weather station
equipment/system software failure/data server failure

External Links to Dundee City Council [T/Financial systems
Loss/Unavailability of Vehicles & Plant

The following vehicles and item of plant may be unavailable for the following
reasons:-

Patrol Van — breakdown/collision damage/vandalism

Spec Lift - breakdown/collision damage/vandalism

Flat Bed pick up - breakdown/collision damage/vandalism

Mobile Gantries — mechanical failure/structural failure/accidental damagefvandalism
Rescue Boats — mechanical failure/collision damage/vandalism

Unavailability of bridge to travelling public

The bridge could be unavailable to the travelling public, in one or both directions, for
the following reasons:-



. Structural failure of critical element of structure

. Vehicular accident/incident on carriageway
. High wind/ weather related restrictions
. Terrorist threat/action

Procedures for dealing with the above situations are given in the Operations Manual held by
the Bridge Manager, Administrative Officer, Maintenance Supervisor and the Duty Inspector.



3 Notification, Escalation & Reporting

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Incidents outwith normal day to day operation and administration of bridge activities shall be
reported to the Bridge Manager in the first instance, or either the Maintenance Supervisor or
Administrative Officer in the Bridge Manager's absence. A flowchart outlining the Notification
and Escalation procedure is given in Appendix A.

If an incident is considered by the Bridge Manager, or the Officer acting on the Manager’s
behalf, to be exceptional then the Business Continuity Plan will be invoked and the incident
dealt with in accordance with the relevant process/procedure.

If necessary the matter will be escalated by the Bridge Manager to the Clerk, Treasurer and
Engineer to the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board as appropriate.

The Incident Management Team will regularly review the incident and determine when it is
suitable to issue stand down instructions.

The Bridge Manager is responsible for issuing the stand down instructions and ensuring that
all relevant parties are informed.

In all circumstances where this plan has been invoked it is essential to capture lessons
learned by a process of incident debriefing and plan review.

The Bridge Manager will ensure that a debrief is carried out and draw up an Action Plan to
progress recommendations identified at the debrief. Where recommendations require a
revision of this plan this will be detailed in the Action Plan and the Bridge Manager will
update the plan accordingly.

All incidents which result in the invocation of Business Continuity will be reported to the

Members of the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board at the next scheduled meeting.



4, Incident Management Team — Roles and Responsibilities

4.1 The following diagram sets out the overall Business Continuity Organisational Structure:-

Tay Road
Bridge
Joint Board
F X
Clerk to the
Board
Emergency | .| Treasurer
Services = "1 to the
I Engineer to
the Board
External
Service
Suppliers

4.2  The following diagram sets ouit details of the Business Continuity Incident Management
Team:-

Bridge Manager
e A N

— T

Maintenance Administrative
Supervisor Officer

h
Y

43  The roles and responsibilities of the members of the Business Continuity Incident
Management Team are as follows:-



Bndée Managef .

Review Incident Reports and invoke
Business Continuity if required

Overall co-ordination and
implementation of Recovery Plan

Liaison between Incident
Management Team, Board Officers
and Board Members

Liaison with Media through Dundee
City Council press office

Maintenance Supervisor

First line response to incidents
relating to damage to structures,
property and plant and equipment
and making initial report to Bridge
Manager

Mobilisation and co-ordination of
labour and resources

Initial inspection of damage to
structures, property and plant and
equipment

Administrative Officer

First line response to incidents
relating to staff and office IT systems
and making initial report to Bridge
Manager

Mobilisation and co-ordination of
relief staff

Responsible for relocation of staff to
alternative premises if necessary

Responsible for maintaining “Battle
Box”




Core Business Activities — Definitions
The main core business activities undertaken by the Tay Road Bridge Joint Board are as
follows:-

Operations Traffic monitoring and control
Routine bridge patrols
Vehicle breakdown recovery

De-icing of bridge and associated on/off

ramps

First response to bridge related incidents

Maintenance Inspection of bridge, mobile gantries and

associated structures

Preparation of estimates/programmes of

work

Undertaking first line maintenance on bridge,

mobile gantries and associated structures

Back up resource to Operations during high
winds/bridge incidents

Management Manage bridge and associated structures in
such as way as to maximise availability o

travelling public

Manage Health & Safety to minimise risk to
staff and all bridge users

Manage staff/financial resources efficiently in
accordance with appropriate employment
and fiscal legislation

Prepare reports to inform Tay Road Bridge
Joint Board Members on major issues on a

quarterly basis

Procure goods, services and works in

accordance with appropriate EU legislation




6. Interruptions and Continuity Plans

6.1 Non Critical Interruptions

Procedures for dealing with non critical interruptions i.e. weather or traffic related incidents

are given in the TRBJB Operations Manual

6.2 Business Continuity Interruptions

In the event that Business Continuity is invoked, full details of the recovery strategy is given
in the Recovery Plan in Appendix C



7. Resources
7.1 The staff resources employed on a full time basis by the Tay Road Bridge Joint

Board is given below:-

Bridge Manager 1
Administrative Officer 1
Maintenance Supervisor 1
Bridge Inspectors 5
Bridge Officers 10
Maintenance Technicians 3
Maintenance Operatives 12
Administrative Assistant 1
Office Cleaner (P/T) 1




8. Key Contacts
The contact details of the Incident Management Team are:-

lain Mackinnon | Bridge Manager

Fiona Fraser Administrative
Officer

Andy Smith Maintenance
Supervisor

The contact details for Key Board Officers and Members are:-

Fergus Wilson Engineer to the
Board

Roger Mennie Clerk to the
Board

Marjory Stewart | Treasurer to the
Board

Councillor David | Chairman of the
Bowes Board

Councillor Vice Chairman
Margaret Taylor | of the Board

All other contact numbers are given in the Recovery Plan in Appendix C.



Incident Log Forms

A template for the Log to be used to record events during a Business Continuity event is
given in Appendix B. This form will be used to review the Performance of the Recovery Plan

once full business operation is resumed.



10.

Appendices

Appendix A — Notification and Escalation Procedure Flowchart
Appendix B — Incident Log Form
Appendix C — Recovery Plan



Appendix A — Notification and Escalation Flowchart

Activation and Escalation Procedure Flowchart

Notification of Incident

h 4

Contact Bridge Manager

h 4

Accuracy of report confirmed

ACTIONS
s  Record key information

h 4

Can situation be dealt with
by Bridge staff?

No

» Validate source of information
e Corroborate information if possible

‘( Inform Chair/Vice Chair/

Yes
A 4

Bridge Manager establishes
appropriate Incident
Management arrangements
and activates plan

h 4

Incident Management Team
consider Plan actions to put
in place

Engineer/ Clerk/Treasurer and
agree appropriate action

[ ACTIONS

e Assess immediate Health & Safety implications
* Ensure continuance of critical activities

h 4

incident Management Team
implement agreed actions

« Consider resource redistribution strategy

e Consider escalation/de-escalation
e

-~
ACTIONS

Y

Stand down instructions
issued by Bridge Manager

h 4

Incident Management Team
review effectiveness of Plan

Y

Conclusions of Report passed
to Board

Y

Implement any
recommendations from
review

* Allocate responsibilities for actions and feedback
s Implement communications strategy

.




Appendix B — Incident Log
Use this to record alf actions taken, why they were taken, when they were taken and by whom in the

management and recovery of the incident.

INCIDENT LOG

INCIDENT:

LOCATION:

IMPACT:

Date/Time:
From/To:
Action:
Other Info:

Time:

From/To:
Action:
Other Info:

Time:

From/To:
Action:
Other Info:

Time:

From/To:
Action:
Other Info:

Time:

From/To:
Action:
Other Info:




Appendix C — Recovery Plan

Tuy Road Bridge Joint Board

TAY ROAD BRIDGE JOINT BOARD

BUSINESS CONTINUITY
DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN

This Plan is for use in the event of an incident affecting one or more of the divisional functions.
Section 9 details the procedures to follow and it is possible to use all or some of the Recovery
Plans dependent upon the incident.

Service Tay Road Bridge Joint Board
Division TRB Offices and Fife Car Park Premises
Chief Officer lain Mackinnon, Bridge Manager

Business Continuity Co-
ordinator

lain Mackinnon

Plan Owner

lain Mackinnon

Service Recovery
Manager

(To be completed In the event of an incident)

Filename/Path of DRP

Divisional Recovery Plan.doc

Revision Number Rev 2
Date Created June 2010
Date Modified November 2012

Author

lain Mackinnon
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RECOVERY PLAN

This plan will be used by the Bridge Manager or appropriate member of Management Team during

an incident. It will be maintained by the Bridge Manager

This plan should be stored in a shared team area and must be updated following any change to

establishment structure or process. The document should be saved as the next version number

and sent to the Business Continuity Manager, unless otherwise stated. A copy is to be kept off site

by the Clerk, Treasurer and Engineer to the Board

No changes should be made to the Plan without the agreement from the Bridge Manager either as

part of the maintenance programme or during an incident.

1.  Team Summary
No [ Team . | Locatio | Recovery -
U at 71 . (Decisionof - -~
Lo y i Strateglc Group)

1 | Management/Admin | TRB Building 7 4 24 Hours

2 | Operations Control 1 1 ASAP after

Room incident
TRB Building

3 | Messrooms TRB Building N/A N/A 24 Hours

4 | Workshops TRB Building N/A N/A :

5 | Garage TRB Yard N/A N/A

6 | Kiosk and Public Fife Car N/A N/A N/A N/A

Toilet Park




2. Invocation of Business Continuity

(Info from Strategic Group)

 Contact ,N imbers -

o @ =-you tell if Y°“,

Administrative Officer
Maintenance Supervisor

Bndge Manager B

See Sect;on 3 Below:

‘been mvoked’? SR

N =N

Chair/Vice Chair of Board
Clerk/Treasurer/Engineer

See Section 3 Below

If there is a full evacuation, you will be evacuated in accordance with the <Evacuation

Procedures>.

3. Key Business Continuity Contact Numbers

Work Tel No ‘Out of Hoursl

Moblle Tel No:-

lain Mackinnon

Bridge Manager

Andrew Smith

Maintenance
Supervisor

Fiona Fraser

Administrative Officer

Neil Fergusson

Maintenance
Technician (Works)

Ged Glancy

Maintenance
Technician (Electrical)

Willie McKelvey

Maintenance
Technician
(Mechanical)

Control Room

Duty Inspector

Fergus Wilson

Engineer to the Board

Roger Mennie

Clerk to the Board

Marjory Stewart

Treasurer to the Board

Clir David Bowes

Chair of the Board

Taylor

Clir Margaret

Vice — Chair of the

Board




Battlebox

If time and safety permits, take your Battlebox with you. The Battlebox should contain the
following items. It is important to check at least once per month that all documentation is
the latest version and that all items which staff use to help them do their jobs are copied

and included in the Battlebox.

Examples of items to be included in the Battlebox are:

Torch, stationery, notebooks, disposable cameras, mobile phone charger, divisional

documentation

Recovery Plan (Hérd Copyn)k

Back up tape

Procedures Manual (Hard Copy)

Order Book

Staff Contact Details

Web based logins/passwords

Staff Rotas

Battery charger

Phone charger

High Viz Vests

| el | s ] ] e sal ] ]

USB Memory Stick — electronic copy of Recovery Plan, Procedures

Manual etc

Notebooks/Pens/Pencils 12

VVHF Radio & Charger 1

Hand Held Anenometer 1

Thermometer 1




5. Temporary Location
(Info from Strategic Group)

If you are advised that it will be either a few hours before re-entry to the building is permissible or
that access is completely denied, you will be asked to make your way from the Evacuation Points to

the Temporary Accommodation.

5.1. Temporary Location 1

‘Temiporary Location .~ |Address. . = - - |[Map .

Dundee House North Lindsay Street,
Dundee

5.2. Temporary Location 2

‘Temporary Location:: . |[Address’ - . . . |Map .o

6. Recovery Accommodation

Once staff can be moved from Temporary Accommodation, the following locations are designated
as recovery Jocations. The recovery location for each team is shown on Page 2 of this Plan. The
Crisis Manager will advise the Service Recovery Manager that relocation can commence. The

Service Recovery Manager will advise each of their Heads of Service.

6.1. Recovery Accommodation 1

Recovery Location. .- - |Address ~» - o Map..

6.2. Recovery Accommodation 2




7.1.

Staff Movements

The number of critical staff for each team equates to the number of desks allocated at the Recovery

Location. This is shown on Page 2 of this Plan. Non critical staff will be sent home.

The Bridge Manager, or member of Management Team acting on his behalf, will decide which
members of staff are relocated and which members of staff should go home. They should complete

the form below and inform their Head of Service.

The Bridge Manager will pass the names to the Administrative Assistant.

Staff Going Home

To be completed at the time of the incident

Staff going home will be told by their Line Manager that they may go and will receive advice on the
method of transport. If it is not possible for staff to go home, <Facilities> will arrange

accommodation where necessary.

~ NameofStaif | Home Locafion
U Member. i

| TransportiOther . |  Transferred?
RN T :_:j_iRéqmré :é_"l‘l'_fsf,kfz iy B T




7.2. Staff Relocating to Recovery Location

To be completed at the time of the incident

Staff who are relocating will be advised how and when by their Line Manager. They should make
their way to <the recovery location> and will be told how to get there following advice from

Facilities.

o o 1t Requirements | o oo

The Recovery Site Co-ordinator will be nominated by the Bridge Manager and the Team will be advised

who it is.




Technology and Equipment Provision

At the recovery location, the Recovery Site Co-ordinator will aim to ensure that the critical computer
systems and telephony systems are available for the critical functions within the agreed timescales.
Should there be a short period where staff will need to work without the systems while restoration is
completed, refer to Section 9.2 (Contingency Procedure for operating without critical IT)

Applications

~Very High Criticality | . High Criticality |~ Medium Criticality
| T Lkely | Application | Lkely | Application I LKely .
| e : ahon'ﬁme

MS Small |4 hours
Business (Exactive
Server Disaster
Recovery)

Telephony

The following provisions will be made at the recovery location

Moblles

N/A

| 'N-iéha'gé‘m”ent i
Operations

The following telephone numbers will be transferred to the recovery location. No further action need
be taken.

ich Will be Transferred

Management | 221881
Operations 223283




The following telephone numbers cannot be transferred — staff will need to inform clients, suppliers

or customers of the new telephone numbers at the Recovery Location. Once you have been

relocated enter the relevant numbers in this section

8.3.

Team

y Location Telephons

Hardware/Equipment

The following critical equipment need to be available for use in Recovery

| Description -

S| Number

| Location

Supplier .|

Lead Time_

| Managéfhent

team

Laptopor PC___

‘ 24 hburs |

Printer

—[en

TBC

24 Hours

Operations (In
event of loss of
Control Room)

Vaisala Server

Control
Room

Vaisala Ltd

6-8 Weeks

CCTV
Operating/Recording
System

Control
Room

Bt Redcare

2 Days +
supply of
connection
from
cameras to
recovery
location

VHF Radios

Base Set
+ Hand
Sets

Control
Room

Tay
Communications

24 Hours

VMS Controiler

1

Control

Room

VMS Ltd

16 Weeks

8.4.

Materials

The following critical materials need to be available for use in Recovery

N/A




9. Recovery Procedures

This section describes the steps which the Bridge Manager should take to ensure that their staff are
safely relocated. The Bridge Manager will maintain communication with the Service Recovery

Manager regarding progress and escalation of any issues.

9.1 Building Loss

In the event of a building loss, the following Relocation Action List should be followed. This
assumes that The Bridge Office, Marine Parade has been evacuated and staff will be moved to

<the Recovery Location>.

L l

Acflon .~ T T T Supporing Documents [ Done
1. Implement Divisional ‘Re(':ov.e.n“y Plan — .D.iv'i;éi:c;ﬁél RecoverPlan —
V1.0
2. Send Individuals Home Staff Going Home List
Send relevant staff to Recovery Accommodation Staff Transferred List
Clients / others to be contacted with information Key Contacts List

5. Website Information — Recovery Accommodation,

contact details etc

8. Await further infermation/instruction from Bridge

Manager & act accordingly.

7. Keep staff at home updated




9.2 IT Loss

In the event of an IT failure, the following Contingency Plan should be adopted. The member of
staff detecting the fault should log it with the Exactive in the first instance. This assumes the

building itself is unaffected.

This procedure would also be used if Business Continuity has been invoked and there is a delay
between relocation and restoration of critical systems. Please detail the actions you should take if
the failure lasts for 24 hours and for a longer term failure. Please enter in priority order.

e ol e - i | Documents

Management | Office Activate second server using | N/A

/Admin Server most recent back up tape

Management | Broadband | Contact IFB (Internet For Operations Manual

[ Admin/ Connection | Business) Help Desk

Operations

Operations Vaisala Contact Vaisala Help Desk Operations Manual
Server

Operations I-Witness Contact BT Redcare Help Operations Manual
Server Desk

Operations VMS Contact VMS Lid Operations Manual

9.3 Telephony Loss

In the event of a telephony failure, the following Contingency Plan should be adopted. Please detail
the actions you should take within the first 24 hours and for an outage which will last for longer than

24 hours. Please enter in priority order.

This procedure could be used for a:
. telephony only failure (building unaffected)

. telephony failure and concurrent building loss

| Supporting | Pere. .
ocuments | o0

All Teams [ . Télepho.n'é only :féi!ure ) <24 hours —-No Action -
e Telephone only failure - >24 hours — Use staff

mobile phones & email as necessary.

s Telephone & Building loss — <24 hours - Staff None

mobile phones and temporary location




Team

. _A-t’:ti_,o’h '

- .| Supporting .
| Documents |

Done. -

mobile phones / Recovery Accommodation &

telephony provided.

. Té[ép'hc;né & Bﬁif.din.g foss - >24 hours — Staff

9.4 Staff Shortage

In the event of a staffing issue, the following Contingency Plan should be adopted. Staffing

shortage could be caused by sickness, transport failure and industrial action amongst others.

Team .

JAction T

.| Supporting
| Documents

| Done "

AII T'eéms' '

Rationalise resources to cover all critical operations
wherever possible.

Implement two person shift procedures for

Inspectors/Officers if necessary

Operations

Manual

Operations

Rotas

9.5 Critical Equipment Loss

in the event of the function not being able to operate due to the loss of critical equipment, the
following Contingency Plan should be adopted.
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“'lﬁslﬁecctorstfﬁcer‘s Loss of Spec L'ilft' """ Operations Manual

Use alternative vehicie with tow pole

9.6 Critical Materials Loss

In the event of the function not being able to operate due to the loss of critical materials, the
following Contingency Plan should be adopted.

N/A

10 Contact Details

10.1 Third Parties to be contacted

~ Company




10.2

Staff Contact Details

Name - |Desighation -~ - | Work Phone | Outof Work
tain Bridge Manager
Mackinnon
Fiona Fraser | Administrative Officer
Andy Smith Maintenance

Supervisor
Catriona Administrative Assistant
James
Neil Maintenance
Fergusson Technician
Ged Glancy Electrician

Willie Mechanic
McKelvey
Brian Bridge Inspector
Mcllravey
Alan Delpippo | Bridge Inspector
Kevin Coats Bridge Inspector
Geoff Willis Bridge Inspector
Jim McDonald | Bridge Inspector
Ray Byrne Maintenance Operative
Stuart Tarvit Maintenance Operative

Matt Lannen

Maintenance Operative

Heidi Bowman

Maintenance Operative

Mark West

Maintenance Operative

Ken Christie

Maintenance Operative

Steve MclLean

Maintenance Operative

Duncan Maintenance Operative
MacGregor-

Young

Graeme Dunn | Maintenance Operative
Jim Jeffrey Maintenance Operative
James Morris | Maintenance Operative
Shaun Maintenance Operative
Atkinson

Yvonne Rice | Bridge Officer

Dave Wells Bridge Officer

Tom Bridge Officer
Maclachlan

Ken Barnett Bridge Officer

Graeme Bridge Officer
Simpson

George Orr Bridge Officer

Fred Olds Bridge Officer

Ross Hannan | Bridge Officer

Dawn Wallace | Cleaner
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PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board of the results of equality monitoring
carried out in accordance with the Board's Single Equality Scheme and to report on
the progress towards meeting the commitments made in the Scheme.
RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Board:-

Notes the information contained in Appendix 1.

Approves the publication of the information contained in Appendix 1 on the Tay Road
Bridge website.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are minimal and will be contained within the existing
budget.

MAIN TEXT

The Board's Single Equality Scheme requires the monitoring information, contained at
Appendix 1, to be reported annually.

The Board's Equality Monitoring Reports and Equality Scheme are published on the
Tay Road Bridge website.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
This report has been screened for any policy implications in respect of Sustainability,
Strategic Environmental Assessment, Anti Poverty, Equality Impact Assessment and

Risk Management.

The publication of the monitoring data complies with the requirements of the Equality
Act 2010.
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6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Clerk to the Board and the Head of Human Resources, Dundee City Council,
have been consuited in the preparation of this report.

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS

7.1 None,

lain Mackinnon
Bridge Manager



APPENDIX 1

TAY ROAD BRIDGE - EQUALITY MONITORING INFORMATION - 2011-2012

1.1

1.2

1.3
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2.1.1

2.1.2

Staff in Post

The following table contains the monitoring data for existing empioyees.

Ethnic Group
Ethnic Group No of Employees
White English 1
Scofttish 32
Welsh 1
Total 34
Disability
Disability No of Employees
Disabled 1
Non-disabied 33
Total 34
Gender
Gender No of Employees
Male 29
Female 5
Total 34

Applicants for Empioyment

In 2012, one Maintenance vacancy was advertised, and 2 Bridge Officer vacancies.
The information gathered from the job vacancy application forms is as follows:-

Maintenance QOperative Tech 2

Closing Date 15/06/12

Ethnic Group No of Applicanis No Interviewed No Successiul

Asian Other 3

White Scottish 61 11 1
British 8

Total 72 11 1

Gender No of Applicants No Interviewed No Successful

Male 72 11 1

Female

Total 72 11 1
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Disability No of Applicants No Interviewed No Successful

Disabled 2 1 1

Non-disabled 70 10

Total 72 11 1

Age Group No of Applicants No interviewed No Successful

16-25 4 1 1

26-35 14 2

36-45 24 2

46-55 27 6

56 and over 3

Total 72 11 1

Religion No of Applicants No Interviewed No Successful

None 9 1

Church of Scotland 42 g 1

Roman Catholic 10

Other Christian 5

Muslim

Unknown <] 1

Toial 72 11 1
Bridge Officer Closing Date 28/09/12

Ethnic Group No of Applicants No Interviewed No Successful
Asian Other 13 1
White Scottish 126 14 1
British 11
Not 5
Entered
Total 1565 15 1
Gender No of Applicanis No Interviewed No Successful
Male 153 15 1
Femaie 2
Total 155 15 1
Disability No of Applicants No [nterviewed No Successful
Disabled 5
Non-disabled 147 15 1
Not Entered 3
Total 155 15 1
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2.2.5

Age Group No of Applicants No Inferviewed No Successful
16-25 16 1

26-35 27 8 1
36-45 32 4

46-55 52 2

56 and over 21

Unknown 7

Total 155 15 1
Religion No of Applicants No Interviewed No Successful
None 37 6 1
Church of Scotland 59 5

Roman Catholic 16 3

Other Christian 36 1

Muslim 0

Unknown 7

Total 155 15 1
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